
 

903, 9th Floor, Sakar 9 , B/s Old RBI, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad 380 009. 

Ph.: 0091 79 40403030 Email : admin@ananyafinance.com  

CIN U65993GJ2009PTC056691 

                                                                   GSTIN : 24AAHCA8023D1Z4 

 
 

 
ANANYA FINANCE FOR INCLUSIVE GROWTH PVT. LTD 
 
DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021 
 
To, 
The Members, 
Your directors present  the Twelfth Annual Report on  the Business and Operations of  the Company 
together  with  Audited  Statement  of  Accounts  and  Auditors  Report  thereon  for  the  Financial  Year 
ended March 31, 2021. 
 
1. Financial Results summary  

Rs. (In Lakh)      Rs. (In Lakh) 

Particulars  For  the  year  ended 
31st March 2021 

For  the  year  ended 
31st March 2020 

Income from Operation                      3,677.73  4,570.65 

Other income                            71.00  29.15 

Profit (Loss) before Depreciation & Tax  (1,111.34)  334.55 

Less: Depreciation  35.16 9.69

Profit (Loss) before Tax (1,146.50) 324.86

Less: MAT / Current Tax  42.62 257.19

Less: Deferred Tax (expense)/benefit  (2.59) ‐229.84

Profit (Loss) after Tax  (1,186.53) 297.51

 
2. Dividend 
 Your directors do not recommend dividend for the year. 
 
3. Reserves 
Your directors have not transferred any amount to the Statutory Reserves as per the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 in view of the loss. 
 
4.  Review of business and operations and State of affairs of your company and outlook 
 
During the year under review, the total income of your company stands at Rs.3748.73 Lakhs. The Loss 
before  tax and exceptional  items stood at Rs.1146.50  lakhs. The Loss after  tax stood at Rs.1186.53 
lakhs.  
 
Our Loan assets under management (AUM) stood at Rs. 26,128.07 lakhs.  
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The  PAR  30  of  the  company  is   7.5%  and  company  hold  sufficient  provision  of38.6%  on  the  said 
portfolio.  Overall  Provision  Coverage  ratio  (Including  Standard  asset  provision)  is  at  4.6%  of  EAD 
which is adequate. 
 
Despite the challenging environment for the industry, your company managed its liquidity well with 
adequate margin of safety. The company had a positive ALM throughout the year, whereby inflows 
exceeded expected outflows across all buckets. 
 
Outlook 
The  ongoing  “second  wave”  of  COVID‐19  pandemic  across  certain  parts  of  the  Country  has 
contributed decline  in economic activities. Various measures such as  full or partial  lockdown, night 
curfew and vaccination drives have been  implemented by  the central/  state government or by  the 
local authorities.  
 
Given  the  uncertainty  over  the  potential  macro‐economic  impact  and  external  regulatory 
developments, the Management has considered internal and external information up to the date of 
approval of these financial statements and has estimated overlays and made certain  judgements  in 
accordance with  the  policy  of  the Company  for  the  purpose  of  determination  of  the  provision  for 
impairment of financial assets carried at amortized cost and in relation to revenue recognition.  
 
The  Provision  for  expected  credit  loss  as  on March  31,  2021  aggregates  Rs.  1067.36  lakhs  which 
includes  potential  impact  on  account  of  the  pandemic  of  Rs.  265.34  lakhs.  Based  on  the  current 
indicators of future economic conditions, the Company considers these provisions to be adequate. 
 
The  extent  to  which  the  pandemic  including  the  current  “second  wave”  that  has  significantly 
increased  the  number  of  cases  in  India,  will  continue  to  impact  the  results  of  the  Company  will 
depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain, including, among other things, any new 
information concerning the severity of the COVID‐19 pandemic and any action to contain its spread 
or  mitigate  its  impact  whether  government‐mandated  or  elected  by  the  Company.  Given  the 
uncertainty over the potential macro‐economic condition the impact of the COVID‐19 pandemic may 
be  different  from  that  estimated  as  at  the  date  of  this  report  and  the  Company  will  continue  to 
closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions that impacts the operation.  
 
5. Extract of Annual Return 
 
Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management 
and  Administration)  Rules,  2014,  an  extract  of  Annual  Return  is  available  on  the  website  of  the 
Company at www.ananyafinance.com 
 
6. Details of Directors appointed/resigned during the year   
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Your  company  appointed  Ms.  Tara  Nair  as  the  Additional  cum  Independent  Director  w.e.f.  10th 
August  2020  and Mr.  Navin  Kumar Maini  as  the  Additional  cum  Independent  Director  w.e.f.  17th 
March 2021.  
 
7. Details of Subsidiaries Companies, Associate Company & LLP/Partnership   
 

Sr, 
No. 

Name of Company   Nature of Relationship  No.  of  Share 
hold/Capital 
Contribution  

  NIL  NIL  NIL 

*There  is  no  Subsidiary,  Associate  &  LLP/Partnership  of  Company  hence  no  such  information  is 
provided.  
 
8. Number of Board Meetings 

During the Financial Year 2020‐21, meetings of the Board of Directors of the company were held on 
the following dates: 
 
 

Sr. No.  Date of Board Meeting  No. of Director Present in the Meeting

1.  25th June 2020  All the directors were present in the meeting 

2.  30th June 2020  All  the  directors  were  present  in  the  meeting 
except Ms. Jayshree Vyas. Leave of Absence was 
also granted. 

3.  10th August 2020  All  the  directors  were  present  in  the  meeting 
except Ms. Jayshree Vyas. Leave of Absence was 
also granted. 

4.  19th October 2020  All  the  directors  were  present  in  the  meeting 
except  Mr.  Sanjay  Gandhi.  Leave  of  Absence 
was also granted. 

5.  10th November 2020  All  the  directors  were  present  in  the  meeting 
except  Ms.  Jayshree  Vyas  and  Mr.  Arvind 
Agarwal.  Leave of Absence was also granted. 
 

6.  18th January 2021  All the directors were present in the Meeting.
 

7.  17th March 2021  All the directors were present in the Meeting. 
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9. Particulars of Loan, Guarantees and Investments under Section 186 
 
During the year under review, your Company has disbursed loans totaling to Rs. 8,236.31 lakhs to 30 
institutions and enterprises and Rs.14,566.21 lakhs to retail borrowers as part of its normal course of 
business.  In addition, the company did one pool purchase totaling to Rs.106.00  lakh through Direct 
Assignment from one existing MFI borrower as part of its delinquency management and overdue loan 
recovery efforts. Your directors draw attention of the members to Note no.42 to the audited financial 
statements which sets out the break‐up of the loan portfolio disclosures. 
 
The investment made in other securities has been as part of the normal course of business and has 
been within the limits prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
10. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties: 
 
All  the  transactions with  related  parties were  carried  out  on  an  arm’s  length  basis.  Your  directors 
draw  attention  of  the members  to Note  no.36  to  the  audited  financial  statements which  sets  out 
related party disclosures. 
 
11. Auditor’s Report: 
 
The Auditor’s Report does not contain any qualification notes to accounts and the Auditor’s Report is 
self‐explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments. 
 
12. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption & Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 
 
Your Company  is  taking all possible steps  to conserve energy and reduce  the cost of operations by 
implementing the Environmental Policy.  
 
Your  company made  investments  in  technology  to  upgrade  its  accounting  system,  introduce  a  HR 
software  system  and  develop  its  proprietary  Loan  Management  System  for  which  the  trademark 
name  ‘Finclusys’  has  been  registered.  The  investments  in  technology  will  help  the  company 
strengthen its internal controls and improve its product and service offering.  
 
During the year under review, the foreign exchange outflow was equivalent to Rs.0.37 lakh. 
 
13.  Risk Management Policy: 
 
Your company has a well‐defined risk management framework to  identify, assess and monitor risks 
and  strengthen  controls  to mitigate  risks.  The  company  has  established  procedures  to  periodically 
place  before  the  Risk  Management  Committee  and  Board  of  Directors,  the  risk  assessment  and 
minimization procedures being followed by the company and steps taken by it to lower these risks. 
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The  Risk  Management  processes  has  been  established  across  the  company  and  are  continuously 
reviewed improved and adapted to the changing risk landscape.  
 
The company’s Risk Management practices are guided by its internal credit and exposure policies and 
standard  operating  procedures  that  have  been  designed  to  be  commensurate with  its  business  of 
lending in the Microfinance, Agrifinance and MSME segments, and endeavors to manage the various 
risks  in  the business  including  Credit  risk,  Liquidity  risk, Market  risk, Operational  risk  and  Strategic 
risks.  Your  directors  draw  attention  of  the  members  to  Note  no.39  to  the  audited  financial 
statements which sets out the Financial Risk Management disclosures. 
 
The  Board  of  Directors  have  constituted  a  Risk  Management  Committee  that  reviews  the  risk 
management  framework  of  the  company  on  a  quarterly  basis.  The  committee  comprises  of  the 
following Directors: 

1. Ms.Jayshree Vyas 
2. Prof. Dr. Sidharth Sinha 
3. Mr.Sanjay Gandhi 
4. Mr.Arvind Agarwal 

 
14. Details of Directors: 
 

SR. 

NO. 

NAME  OF 

DIRECTOR 

DIN 

 

DESIGNATIO

N 

DATE  OF 
APPOINTMENT 

RESIDENTIAL 

ADDRESS 

1  Mr. Brij Mohan 00667210 Independent 

Director 

09/05/2009 C‐4c‐085  Carlton‐Iv, 
Phase‐V,  Gurgaon, 
122001,  Haryana, 
India 
 
 
 

2.  Ms. Jayshree Vyas  00584392 Director 22/04/2009 1,  Sun  view 
Apartment,  Opp. 
Purnanand  Ashram 
Ishwarbhuvan, 
Ahmedabad, 
380014,  Gujarat, 
India 

3.  Prof.  Dr.Sidharth 

Sinha 

01831966 Nominee 

Director 

07/12/2012 House  402  ,  Indian 
Institute  Of 
Management, 
Ahmedabad, 
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380015,  Gujarat, 
India 

4.  Mr.  Arvind  Kumar 

Agarwal 

07405470 Nominee 

Director 

19/02/2016 Flat  A1  1101  Elite 
Prominade  Rai 
Layout, JP Nagar 7th 
Phase  Bangalore 
560078 KA IN  

5.  Mr. Sanjay Gandhi  02234298 Nominee 

Director 

27/02/2018 2/7, Hamelia Street, 
Vatika  City,  Sector 
49,  Gurgaon, 
122018, Haryana 
 

6.  Mr. Taejun Shin  08056236 Nominee 

Director 

31/07/2018 5‐10‐49‐1210, 
Yashio,  Shinagawa, 
Tokyo,  Japan‐ 
140003 

7.  Mr. Gaurav Gupta  08663203 Managing 

Director 

01/02/2020 D‐71,  Vishal 
Residency,  Ramdev 
Nagar  Road, 
Satellite, 
Ahmedabad 
 

8.   Ms. Tara Nair  03564073       Independent 

Director 

18/01/2021 B  33,  Century 
Towers,  Bodakdev, 
Ahmedabad  

9.   Mr.  Navin  Kumar 

Maini 

00419921 Independent 

Director 

17/03/2021 B‐74,  Defense 
Colony, New Delhi 

 

15. Details  of  significant  and  material  orders  passed  by  the  regulators  or  courts  or  tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future. 
 
There have been no orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals that impact the status of 

going concern of your company or that hinder the company’s operations in future. 
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16. Deposits (As per the Definition under Section 2(31) of the Companies Act, 2013) 

The company does not accept any deposits from Public as prescribed under the RBI rules. 

The following details of deposits, covered under Chapter V of the act: 

Deposits Accepted during the year  NIL 

Remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year  NIL 

Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of 
interest thereon during the year and if so, number of such cases and the total 
amount involved 

NIL 

At the beginning of the year 

Maximum during the year 

At the end of the year 

 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

The  details  of  deposits  which  are  not  in  compliance  with  the  requirements  of 

Chapter 

NIL 

 
 

17.  Receipt  of  any  commission  by  MD  /WTD  from  a  Company  or  for  receipt  of  commission 

/remuneration from it Holding or subsidiary 

 
The MD has not received any commission from the company or from its holding company.  
 
18. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 

 

As  per  Section  135 of  Companies Act  2013,  your  company  falls  under  the purview of  CSR  and has 

constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee consisting of the following Directors: 

1. Mr. Brijmohan 

2. Ms. Jayshree Vyas 

3. Mr. Sanjay Gandhi 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee held meeting on 04th September 2020 during the year 

under review. 

During the year under review, your Company has spent Rs. 11.5 lakhs which was over and above the 

required regulatory amount of Rs.9 lakhs required to be spent as per section 135 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). The amount of Rs. 9 lakhs was spent on 

nurturing women entrepreneurship with the objective of reaching out to 135 women entrepreneurs 

in  urban,  semi  urban  and  rural  areas  engaged  in  livelihood  activities  across  the Gujarat  state.  The 

project  focused  on  women  from  low‐income  households  who  are  already  engaged  in  income 
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generating  livelihood  activities  as  well  as  women  who  have  potential  for  any  such  activities.  The 

amount  of  Rs.2.5  lakhs  was  given  as  a  grant  to  SEEDS  (Social  Education  Economical  Development 

Society),  an  NGO  in  Aruppukottai,  Tamil  Nadu  in  May  ‘2020  to  distribute  ration  kits  (containing 

pulses, cooking oil, sugar, ragi flour, spices & condiments etc) to 250 households involving sanitation 

workers, senior citizens, differently‐abled persons & widows during COVID‐19 Pandemic. 

 

19. Audit Committee 

As part of the internal controls monitoring process, The Board of Directors have constituted an Audit 

Committee comprising of the Directors listed below. The committee on a half‐yearly basis reviews the 

Financial  Reporting  process,  the  system  of  internal  controls,  audit  process  and  compliances  with 

applicable  laws  and  regulations  and  internal  guidelines.  The  Audit  Committee  consists  of  the 

following Directors: 

1. Ms. Jayshree Vyas 

2. Prof. Dr. Sidharth Sinha 

3. Mr. Sanjay Gandhi 

 

20. Nomination & Remuneration Committee Policy 

 

The Company has in place the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consisting of Ms. Tara Nair, 

Ms. Jayshree Vyas and Mr. Sanjay Gandhi. Also there is a Compensation Committee (HR Committee) 

constituted by the Board of Directors which includes Prof. Dr. Sidharth Sinha, Ms. Jayshree Vyas and 

Mr. Taejun Shin that reviews the HR performance and adherence to internal policies and guidelines 

and applicable external guidelines on a bi‐annual basis. 

 

21. Disclosure on Establishment of a Vigil Mechanism 
 
A Fraud free and corruption free environment has been core to your company’s culture. In view of the 
potential  risk  of  fraud  and  corruption  due  to  rapid  growth,  the  Company  has  put  an  even  greater 
emphasis to address this risk. To meet this objective, a comprehensive Vigil Mechanism and Whistle 
Blower Policy have been laid down by the Board of Directors which form part of the HR policy of the 
Company. 
 
22. Managerial remuneration 
 

Sr. No.  Name of Director  Remuneration  for 
F.Y  2020‐
2021(Amount In Rs.) 

Remuneration  for 
F.Y  2019‐
2020(Amount In Rs.) 
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1.  Gaurav Gupta ‐Managing Director 
from 01.02.2020 
(The remuneration indicated for the 
previous F.Y. 2019‐2020 is for 2 
months – Feb’20 & Mar’20) 

48,89,568

 

8,41,911

2.  Subraya  Shankar  Bhat  ‐Managing 
Director upto 31.01.2020

‐ 45,96,170

 
 
23.  Disclosures  under  Sexual  Harassment  of  Women  at  Workplace  (Prevention,  Prohibition  & 
Redressal) Act, 2013 
   
In  accordance  with  the  Sexual  Harassment  of  Women  at  Workplace  (Prevention,  Prohibition  and 
Redressal)  (SHWS) Act, 2013, your company has a policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment at the 
Workplace  and  the  Board  of  Directors  have  unanimously  adopted  the  same  w.e.f.  17th  June,  2016 
which was  further updated  in October’2020. The Company has appointed Ms. Rekha Singhal, Head, 
FPRU, as Presiding Officer in the Internal Complaints Committee constituted under SHWW Act, 2013. 
During the year under review, no complaint was reported under the said policy framed as per Act. 
 
24. Secretarial Audit and Secretarial Auditor’s Report 
Pursuant to provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment 
and  Remuneration  of Managerial  Personnel)  Rules,  2014  the  Company  has  appointed  Kashyap  R. 
Mehta & Associates, Company Secretaries  to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The 
Secretarial Audit report in the prescribed Form No MR‐3 is annexed herewith. 
 
25. Statutory Auditors 
 
Deloitte  Haskin  &  Sells  have  consented  and  shown  their  eligibility  for  appointment  as  Statutory 
Auditors  of  the  Company  and  were  appointed  in  the  Eleventh  annual  general  meeting  of  the 
Company for a period of five years.  
 
26. Cost Auditors 
 
The Company does not fall within the purview of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence 
the Company was not required to appoint Cost Auditor for the year under review. 
 
27. Directors Responsibility Statement 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, your Directors confirm 
that: 
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a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 

material departures; 

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 

the  state  of  affairs  of  the  Company  as  at  31st  March,  2021  and  of  the  profit  /loss  of  the 

Company for that period; 

c) The  Directors  have  taken  proper  and  sufficient  care  for  the  maintenance  of  adequate 

accounting  records  in  accordance  with  the  provisions  of  the  Companies  Act  2013  for 

safeguarding  the  assets  of  the  company  and  for  preventing  and  detecting  fraud  and  other 

irregularities. 

d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

e) The Directors  have  devised  proper  systems  to  ensure  compliance with  the  provisions  of  all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.  

f) The Directors have  laid down  internal  financial controls  to be  followed by the company and 

that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.  

 

28. Compliance with Secretarial Standards 

The  Company  has  complied  with  the  Secretarial  Standards  issued  by  the  Institute  of  Company 

Secretaries of India in carrying out its Board meetings and Annual General Meeting. 

 

29. Compliance with Downstream Investment 

The Directors are pleased to inform that the Company has made its first downstream investment in 
Prayas  Financial  Services  Private  Limited, an  NBFC‐  MFI  based  in  Gandhinagar,  on  19th February 
2021. The amount of investment is Rs.75,00,000 by subscribing to 5,00,000 common Equity Shares of 
Prayas at a valuation of Rs.15 per share which  includes a premium of Rs.5/‐ share. The  investment 
has given Ananya a stake of 5.87% in Prayas. For this downstream investment, Ananya has in place a 
system ensuring compliance with applicable provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 
and rules made thereunder, and an annual certification to this effect  from the Statutory Auditor of 
the Company. 
 

30. Capacity Building Initiatives 

The company was also appointed as  the Technical Advisor  to World Bank  for  three years under  the 
JOHAR  project  that  targets  to  benefit  200,000  smallholder  farmer  households  in  the  state  of 
Jharkhand.  Your  company  is providing capacity building and  credit  linkage  facilities  to  FPOs  that  are 
formed under the program. 
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31. Impact of COVID‐19 and outlook 

The spread of COVID‐19 and the consequential lockdown has impacted the global and Indian economy. 

It has affected livelihoods across the country but the most affected are the families at the bottom of 

the economic pyramid and the worst affected are families that form the set of the migrant population.  

 

The  pandemic  and  loss  of  livelihoods  has  a  disproportionately  higher  effect  on  the  women  of  the 

households  since  they  are  primary  caretakers  of  the  family.  The  effect  is  due  to  being  unable  to 

participate  in employment engagements outside  the house  that were present pre‐COVID and health 

related  issues  arising  from  the  higher  burden  of  household  tasks.  These  are  in  addition  to  the 

challenges  that women  face on account of domestic  violence, higher  risk of  falling  ill  and needs not 

being met as women tend to have less decision‐making power.  

 

However, the microfinance sector that accounts for ~85% of your company’s business, has fueled the 

efforts  of  rural  development,  women  empowerment  and  wealth  generation  by  providing,  credit, 

services to poor and low‐income households. One of the most important features of Micro Finance is 

aiding the process of attaining financial inclusion in India.  

 

With  the  actions  are  being  taken  by  the  Government  and  the  Reserve  Bank  to  boost  liquidity,  the 
economic activities in the microfinance, agriculture and MSME sectors are expected to pick‐up in the 
second half of FY 2021‐22. With lending appetite among mainstream banks continuing to be low, the 
gap  between  demand  and  supply  in  micro  credit  will  remain  and  provide  an  opportunity  for  your 
company to grow  its portfolio. Your directors draw attention of  the members to Note no. 6.4  to  the 
audited financial statements which sets out the Impact of COVID‐19 
 

32. Acknowledgement 
The  Directors  express  their  sincere  appreciation  to  the  valued  shareholders,  bankers,  clients  and 
employees for their support. 
 

 
By Order of the Board of Directors 

Date: 25th May 2021 
   
  Sd/‐  Sd/‐ 

Place: Ahmedabad          _________                         _________ 
 (Director)          (Director) 

                                                                                                        DIN: 00584392                DIN: 01831966 
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FORM NO. AOC ‐2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub‐section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Form  for  Disclosure  of  particulars  of  contracts/arrangements  entered  into  by  the  company  with 

related parties  referred  to  in  sub  section  (1)  of  section 188 of  the Companies Act,  2013  including 

certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. 

SL. No.  Particulars  Details 

a)   Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship  NIL 

b)   Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction ‐

c)   Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction  ‐ 

d)   Salient  terms  of  the  contracts  or  arrangements  or 

transaction including the value, if any 

‐ 

e)   Justification  for  entering  into  such  contracts  or 

arrangements or transactions’ 

‐ 

f)   Date of approval by the Board  ‐ 

g)   Amount paid as advances, if any ‐

h)   Date  on  which  the  special  resolution  was  passed  in 

General  meeting  as  required  under  first  proviso  to 

section 188 

‐

 

 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

SL. No.  Particulars  Details 

a)   Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship 1) Satya Micro Capital
2) Gaurav Gupta 
3) Pranav Desai 
4) Rekha Singhal  

b)   Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction  1) Loan’s  given  – 
Associate  of  Parent 
Company 

2) Salary  –  Key 
Managerial 
Personnel  

3) Salary  ‐  Key 
Managerial 
Personnel 

4) Salary  –  Key 
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Managerial 
Personnel 
 

c)   Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction  1) 24 Months 
2) 3 years 
3) Full  Time 

Employment 
4) 6 Months 

d)   Salient  terms  of  the  contracts  or  arrangements  or 

transaction including the value, if any 

‐ 

e)   Date of approval by the Board  1) 30/06/2020 

2) 29/01/2020 

3) 18/01/2021 

4) 25/06/2020 

f)   Amount paid as advances, if any  NIL 

 

                                                                                                     By Order of the Board of Directors 

 

Date: 25/05/2021  Sd/‐  Sd/‐ 

  Place: Ahmedabad          _________                     __________      

                                                                                                      (Director)    (Director)           
                                                                                                 DIN: 00584392               DIN: 01831966 
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ANNEXURE  
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES 

 
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 
At  the  outset,  CSR  activities  at  Ananya  Finance  for  Inclusive  Growth  Private  Limited 
(Ananya) is already in existence for the benefit of clients in the matter of capacity building, 
women  empowerment  initiatives  etc.  We  at  Ananya,  believe  that  integrating  social, 
environmental and ethical responsibilities into the governance of businesses ensures the 
long term success, competitiveness and sustainability. Our Corporate Social Responsibility 
policy conforms to the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Schedule VII and such 
other amendments from time to time as spelt out by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government of India. The CSR Committee so constituted formulated Policy on Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR Policy) and the Board of Directors of the Company has approved 
the same as per the recommendation of the CSR Committee. 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 
 

Sr. No.  Name of 
Director 

Designation / 
Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of 
meetings of 
CSR 
Committee 
held 
during the 
year. 

Number of 
meetings of 
CSR 
Committee 
attended 
during 
the year. 

1.  Mr. Brijmohan Chairman 1 1 

2.  Ms. Jayshree 
Vyas 

Director  1  1 

3.  Mr. Sanjay 
Gandhi 

Nominee 
Director

1  1 

 
3. Provide the web‐link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR 

projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:     
https://ananyafinance.com/corporate‐social‐responsibility/ 

  
4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance 

of sub‐rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report):  Not applicable 
 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub‐rule (3) of rule 7 of 
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount 
required for set off for the financial year, if any:       NIL 
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Sr. No.  Financial Year Amount available 
for set‐off 
from preceding 
financial 
years (in Rs)

Amount required to be 
setoff 
for the financial year, if 
any (in Rs) 

1.   

2.   

3.       

4.       

 
6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):   Rs. 4,45,68,698 

 
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): 

Rs.8,91,374 rounded off to Rs. 9,00,000 
 
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 
previous financial years ‐  NIL 
 
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any:  NIL 
 
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b‐7c):  Rs.9,00,000 
 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 
 

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year. 
(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 
section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to 
section 135(5). 

Amount.  Date of transfer.  Name of the 
Fund 

Amount.  Date of 
transfer 

 
 
11,50,000 
 
 

NIL 
 

NA
 

NA
 

NA 
 

NA
 

 
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:  
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(1)  (2)  (3)  (4)  (5)  (6)  (7)  (8)  (9)  (10)  (11) 

Sl. 
No. 

Name 
of the 
Project 

Item from 
the 
list of 
activities 
in 
Schedule 
VII 
to the Act. 

Local 
area 
(Yes/N
o). 

Location 
of the 
project. 

Project
duratio
n. 

Amount
allocated 
for the 
project 
(in Rs.). 

Amount 
spent in 
the current 
financial Year 
(in 
Rs.). 

Amount
transfer
red to 
Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
for the 
project 
as per 
Section 
135(6) 
(in 
Rs.). 

Mode of 
Implementa 
tion ‐ 
Direct 
(Yes/No). 

Mode of 
Implementation ‐ 
Through 
Implementing 
Agency 

Stat
e. 

D
is
tr
ic
t. 

N
a
m
e

CSR
Regis
trati
on 
nu
mb
er 

 

1.  Nurturing 
Women 
Entreprene
urship 

Item no iii 

Promotin
g  gender 
equality 
and 
empower
ing 
women 

Yes  Gandhi
nagar, 
Gujarat 

6 
months 

9,00,000 The 
company 
has spent 
Rs.9,00,000 
but the 
implementin
g agency has 
utilised only 
Rs.1,24,165 

NIL No, through 
impeme‐ 
nting agency 

Friends of WWB, 
India 
CSR00000871 

  Total  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 9,00,000 9,00,000 ‐ ‐  ‐

 
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the 
financial year:  
 

(1)  (2)  (3)  (4)  (5)  (6) (7) (8) 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of 
the 
Project 

Item from 
the list of 
activities 
in 

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No). 

Location of the 
project. 

Amount
spent 
for 
the 

Mode of
implementation 
‐ 
Direct 

Mode of 
implementation ‐ 
Through implementing 
agency. 
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schedule 
VII to the 
Act. 

State.  District. project 
(in Rs.). 

(Yes/No).  Name.  CSR 
registration
number 

1.  Distribution 
of Ration 
Kits 

Item no. 1 
Eradicating 
Hunger, 
poverty and 
malnutrition 

No  Aruppukottai, Tamil 
Nadu 

2,50,000 Direct NA 

  Total  ‐  ‐  ‐  2,50,000 ‐ ‐ 

 
 
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads:  NIL 
 
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable:  Not Applicable 
 
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): 11.5 lakhs 
 
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Not applicable 
 

Sr. No.   Particulars  Amount in Rs. 

(i)  Two percent of average net profit of the 
company as per 
section 135(5) 
 

9,00,000 

(ii)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year 
 

11,50,000 

(iii)  Excess amount spent for the financial year 
[(ii)‐(i)] 
 

2,50,000 

(iv)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 
programmes or 
activities of the previous financial years, if 
any 
 

NIL

(v)  Amount available for set off in succeeding 
financial years 
[(iii)‐(iv)] 
 

NIL 
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9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:  Not 
Applicable 
 

Sl. 
No 

Preceding 
Financial 
Year. 

Amount 
transferred 
to 
Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
under 
section 135 
(6) 
(in Rs.) 

Amount 
spent 
in the 
reporting 
Financial 
Year 
(in Rs.). 

Amount transferred to any 
fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per 
section 135(6), if 
any. 

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 
financial 
years. (in Rs.) Name 

of the 
Fund 

Amount 
(in Rs). 

Date of 
transfer 

1.         

2.         

3.           

  Total       

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the 
preceding financial year(s):  NIL 
 

(1)  (2)  (3)  (4)  (5)  (6)  (7)  (8)  (9) 

Sr. 
No. 

Project 
ID. 

Name 
of 
the 
Project. 

Financial 
Year in 
which the 
project was 
commenced. 

Project 
duration. 

Total 
amount 
allocated
for the 
project 
(in Rs.). 

Amount 
spent on 
the 
project 
in 
the 
reporting 
Financial 
Year (in 
Rs). 

Cumulative
amount 
spent 
at the end 
of 
reporting 
Financial 
Year. (in 
Rs.) 

Status of 
the 
project ‐ 
Completed
/Ongoing. 

1.                 

2.                 

3.                 

  TOTAL               

 
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the 

asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset‐wise 
details):  Not Applicable 
 
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). 
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(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. 

 
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such 

capital asset is registered, their address etc. 
 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired 
(including complete address and location of the capital asset). 
 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the 
average net profit as per section 135(5). ‐  Not Applicable 
 
 
Sd/‐  Sd/‐ 

____________                                                                          _______________ 

Managing Director  Chairman 

DIN: 08663203  DIN: 0667210 

   

PLACE: AHMEDABAD 

DATE: 25TH MAY 2021 
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Form No.MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST 
MARCH, 2021 

[Pursuant to section92(3) of the CompaniesAct,2013 and rule12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 

 
i. CIN 

 
U65993GJ2009PTC056691 

ii. Registration Date 
 

22/04/2009 

iii. Name of the Company 
 

ANANYA FINANCE FOR INCLUSIVE 
GROWTH PVT.LTD 

iv. Category/Sub-Category of the Company 
  

Company Limited by Shares/ Indian Non-
Government Company 

v. Address of the Registered office and contact details 
 

903, 9th Floor, Sakar-9, B/s Old RBI, 
Ashram Road, Ahmedabad - 380009 

vi. Whether listed company 
 

No 

vii. Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 
Transfer Agent, if any 
 

For Debentures                                        
Kfin Technologies Private Limited, 
Selenium Tower B, Plot – 31-32, 
Gachibowli, Financial District, Hyderabad- 
500 032  
For Equity 
Link Intime India Private Limited 
C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli 
(West) , Mumbai - 400083 

 
PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
 
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated: 
- 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Name  and Description of main 
products/ services 

NIC Code of the 
Product/ service 

%  to total turnover of the 
company 

1 Commercial Loan Companies 
Activities 

64920 97.98% 
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PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Name And Address Of 
The Company 

CIN/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary 
/Associate 

%of 
shares 
held 

Applicable 
Section 

1. Gojo & Company, Inc. NA Holding 70.37% - 
 
 

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 
 
i. Category-wise Share Holding 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of 
the year 

No. of Shares held at the end of the 
year 

% Change
during 
The 
year 

 De
m
at 

Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

D
e
m 
at

Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

 

A. Promoter          
1) Indian          
a) Individual/ 
HUF 

- 1820 1820 0.003 - 1820 1820 0.003 NIL 

b) Central Govt          
c) State Govt(s)          
d) Bodies Corp          
e) Banks / FI          
f) Any Other - 105,61,050 105,61,050   15.99 - 36,91,570 36,91,570 5.59 (10.40) 

Sub-total(A)(1):-  105,62,870 105,62,870 15.99  36,93,390 36,93,390 5.59 (10.40) 
2) Foreign          
g) NRIs-
Individuals 

 - - -  - - - - 

h) Other-
Individuals 

 -        

i) Bodies Corp.  -        
j) Banks / FI  -        
k) Any Other….  -        
 
Sub-total(A)(2):- 

  
- 

 
- 
 

 
- 
 

 
 

 
- 
 

 
- 
 

 
- 

 
- 
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B. Public 
Shareholding 

         

1. Institutions          
a) Mutual Funds          
b) Banks / FI          
c) Central Govt          
d) State Govt(s)          
e) Venture 

Capital Funds 
         

f) Insurance 
Companies 

         

g) FIIs          
h) Foreign 

Venture  
Capital Funds 
 

         

i) Others (specify) 
 Gojo & 

Company, Inc. 
(Foreign 
Company) 

 Stichting 
Capital 4 
Development 
(Foundation) 

 Women’s 
World 
Banking 
Capital 
Partners, LP 
(Limited 
Partership) 

- 553,75,300 
363,16,030 
 
 
 
 
157,81,701 
 
 
 
3,277,569 

553,75,300 
363,16,030 
 
 
 
 
157,81,701 
 
 
 
3,277,569 

83.86 
55.00 
 
 
 
 
23.90 
 
 
 
4.96 

 622,44,780 
464,63,079 
 
 
 
 
157,81,701 
 
 
 
- 

622,44,780 
464,63,079 
 
 
 
 
157,81,701 
 
 
 
- 

94.27 
70.37 
 
 
 
 
23.90 
 
 
 
- 

10.41 
15.37 
 
 
 
 
NIL 
 
 
 
(4.96) 

 
Sub-total(B)(1) 

-  
553,75,300 

 
553,75,300 

 
83.86 

-  
622,44,780 

 
622,44,780 

 
94.27 

 
10.41 

2. Non Institutions          
a) Bodies Corp. 

(i) Indian 
(ii) Overseas 

         

b) Individuals 
 

(i) Individual 
shareholders 
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Shareholding of Promoters 
 

Sr. 
No 

Shareholder’s 
Name 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Shareholding at the end of the year 

  No. of Shares 
(includes both 
equity and 
preference Shares) 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
company 

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of 
the 
company 

%of 
Shares 
Pledged 
encume 
red to 
total 
shares 

% change 
in share 
holding 
during the 
year 

1.  Vijayalakshmi Das 
** 

910 0.001 910 0.001 - NIL 

2.  Jayshree Vyas 910 0.001 910 0.001 - NIL  

holding nominal 
share capital upto 
Rs. 1 lakh 
 
(ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs 1 
lakh 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

91,044 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

91,044 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0.14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

91,044 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
   91,044 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0.14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NIL 

c) Others(Specify)          
 
Sub-total(B)(2) 

  
91,044 

 
91,044 

 
0.14 

  
91,044 

 
91,044 

 
0.14 

 
NIL 

 
Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 
 

  
554,66,344 

 
554,66,344 

 
84 

  
623,35,824 

 
623,35,824 

 
94.41 

 
10.41 

C. Shares  held 
by Custodian 
for GDRs 
&ADRs 

 - - - - - - - - 

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 

  
660,29,214 

 
660,29,214 

 
100 

  
660,29,214 

 
660,29,214 

 
100 

 
0 
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3.  Indian Foundation 
for Inclusive 
Growth 

105,61,050 15.99 36,91,570 5.59 -      (10.4) 

 Total 105,62,870 15.99 36,93,390        5.59 - (10.4) 

 
** The shares have been transmitted to Mr. Biswaroop Das vide Board Resolution dated 25th 
June 2020 
 

Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 
 

Sr. 
no 

 Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year 

  No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company 

 At the beginning of the year 
 

105,62,870 15.99 36,93,390 5.59

 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during 
the year specifying the reasons 
for increase 
/ decrease (e.g. allotment / 
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity 
etc): 
 

Decrease in 
shareholding due 

to transfer  

 

 At the End of the year 
 

36,93,390 5.59 36,93,390 5.59

 
INDEBTEDNESS 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 
 Secured Loans 

excluding deposits
Unsecured 

Loans 
Deposits Total 

Indebtedness 
Indebtedness at the beginning of 
the financial year 
 

i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid 
iii) Interest accrued but not due 

     1,71,92,71,578 
 

1,87,04,136
 

 
 
 

-

-

 
 
 
 

- 
- 
 

     1,71,92,71,578 
 

1,87,04,136
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Total(i+ii+iii) 

1,73,79,75,714 - - 1,73,79,75,714

Change in Indebtedness during 
the financial year 
 -  Addition 
 -  Reduction 
-  Unamortised Transaction cost 

89,50,00,000
90,62,24,902

73,21,026

-
-

 
 

- 
- 

89,50,00,000
90,62,24,902

73,21,026

 
Net Change 

1,85,45,928
-

 
- 

1,85,45,928

Indebtedness  at the 
end  of the financial year 
 
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid 
 iii) Interest accrued but not due 

1,70,07,25,650 
 

1,92,05,540

-
-

-

 
 
 

- 
- 
 

- 

1,70,07,25,650
 

1,92,05,540

 
Total (i+ii+iii) 

1,71,99,31,190 - - 1,71,99,31,190

 
 
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager 
 

Sl. No. Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Name of 
Managing 
Director 

Total 
Amount 

  Mr.Gaurav 
Gupta 

 

1.  Gross salary 
 
(a)Salary as per 
provisions 
containedinsection17(
1) of the Income-tax 
Act, 
1961 

 
(b)Value of perquisites 
u/s 
17(2)Income-tax Act, 

48,89,568

 
 
 
 
48,89,568  
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1961 
 
(c)Profits in lieu of 
salary 
undersection17(3)Inco
me- taxAct,1961 
 
(d)Consultancy 
Charges 
 

 

2.  Stock Option 
3.  Sweat Equity 

4.  Commission 
-  as%ofprofit 
-  others ,specify… 

5.  Others, please specify-
Appreciation on 
deferred PLI 

 
  

6.  Total(A) 
48,89,568

  
48,89,568 

 Ceiling as per the Act 
No restriction

 
 
 
Remuneration to other directors: 
 

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ 
Manager 

Total 
Amount 

 Independent Directors 
ꞏFee for attending board committee 
meetings 
ꞏCommission 
ꞏOthers ,please specify 
 

 
3,30,000 

    
3,30,000 

 Total(1)      
Other Non-Executive Directors 
ꞏFee for attending board committee 
meetings 
ꞏCommission 
ꞏOthers, please specify 
 

 
8,10,000 
 

    
8,10,000 
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 Total(2)      
Total(B)=(1+2)      
Total Managerial Remuneration 11,40,000    11,40,000 

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act ** 1,00,000 
(Per 
Director per 
meeting) 

    

 
** The Company pays Rs. 15,000/- as Sitting Fees Per Director for Board Meetings. Whereas the 
Sitting Fees for Committee Meeting is Rs. 7500/-. The same is within the prescribed ceiling. 
 
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD 

 
Sl. 
no. 

Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Key Managerial  Personnel 

  CEO Company 
Secretary 

CFO Total 

1. Gross salary 
(a)Salary as per provisions 
contained in section17(1)of 
the Income-tax Act,1961 

 
(b)Value of perquisites 
u/s 
17(2)Income-tax 
Act,1961 

 
(c)Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 
17(3)Income-tax 
Act,1961 

 
_ 

 
5,77,366 
 

 
21,89,746 

 

 
_ 

2. Stock Option     
3. Sweat Equity     
4. Commission 

-  as% of profit 
-others, specify… 

    

5. Others ,please specify     
6. Total  5,77,366 21,89,746  
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PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 
 

Type Section of 
the 
companie
s Act 

Brief 
descriptio
n 

Details of Penalty/  
Punishment/Compoundin
g fees imposed 

Authority [RD 
/NCLT/Court] 

Appeal 
made. If 
any(give 
details) 

A.Company 
Penalty      
Punishment      
Compoundin
g 

- - - - - 

B.Directors 
Penalty - - - - - 
Punishment      
Compoundin
g 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

D. Other Officers In Default 
Penalty - - - - - 
Punishment      

Compounding      
 
 
 
Date: 25/05/2021                                               By Order of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 Sd/- Sd/- 
Place: Ahmedabad                              ___________                                             ___________ 

                                                                    (Director)  (Director) 
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FORM NO. MR-3 

 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2021 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and  

Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

To, 
The Members, 
Ananya Finance For Inclusive Growth 
Private Limited 
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Ananya Finance For Inclusive Growth Private Limited,  
[CIN: U65993GJ2009PTC056691] (‘hereinafter called the Company’) having Registered Office at        
903, 9th Floor, Sakar- IX Besides old RBI, Ashram road, Ahmedabad 380 009. The Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / 
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives whether electronically or otherwise during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit 
period, covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the 
provisions of: 
 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
 

(ii)        The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
 

(iii)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings; 

 
(iv) Securities And Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 
 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 

 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 –  Not applicable as the Equity shares of the Company 
are not listed during audit period 
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015 
 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018 – Not applicable as the Company has not issued 
any further share capital during the audit period 

 
(d) Securities And Exchange Board Of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 2014 – Not applicable during the audit period 
 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008. The Company got permission for issue and listing of 250 Secured 
Rated Listed Redeemable Transferable Non Convertible Debentures each having 
face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- only aggregating to Rs. 25 crores during the reporting 
year. 

 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client – Not applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to Issue and 
Share transfer agent during audit period 

 
(g)   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2009  - Not applicable during the audit period 
 
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

1998 - Not applicable during the audit period; and 
 

(vi)  Various common laws applicable to the activities of the Company such as The Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934, Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002, Income Tax, Act, 1961, 
Chapter V of the Finance Act, 1994 (Service Tax), Land Laws, Stamp Act, for which we have 
relied on Certificates/ Reports/ Declarations/Consents/Confirmations obtained by the 
Company from the experts of the relevant field such as Advocate, Consultants, Chartered 
Accountants and officers of the Company and have found that the Company is generally 
regular in complying with the provisions of various applicable Acts. The compliance by the 
Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed 
in this audit since the same have been subject to review by the statutory financial auditor and 
other designated professionals. 

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

(i) Secretarial Standards (SS-1 & SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India  
 
(ii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and the Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock 
Exchange for its listed Debt securities.  
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations: 
 
1. The constitution of Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company is not as per 

section 178 of Companies Act, 2013. The Committee consists of two Members whereas as per 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the committee shall consist of three or more non-
executive Directors out of which not less than one-half shall be Independent Directors. However 
since November, 2020, the committee is duly constituted by appointment of one more Director to 
the Committee ; 
 

2. The Company has submitted on 25th June, 2020 Audited Financial Results and Auditors’ Report for 
the Year 2019-20 dated 25th June, 2020 to BSE Limited for the Limited purpose of compliance with 
SEBI (LODR) and the Financial Statements for the Year 2019-20 were approved by the Board on 
30th June, 2020 and the Company has obtained Statutory Auditors’ Report dated 30th June, 2020. 
The Financial Statements of the Company comprises of notes to accounts also and therefore the 
Statement cannot be termed as Financial Statement unless the notes to accounts are finalised and 
approved by the Board of Directors. Thus there is discrepancy in dates for adopting Financial 
Results for compliance with SEBI (LODR) and adopting Financial Results under the Companies 
Act as the date of the Audit Report indicates the date of completion of audit which is the date on 
which the Auditor has obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the auditor’s 
opinion on Financial Statements which should include notes also.  

 
3. The Board is not constituted as per the requirement of Articles of Association of the Company.  As 

per clause 9.1 of Articles of Association, in case the majority of the Board comprises of male 
Directors, the representation of women Directors on the Board shall be at least 33% (Thirty Three 
percent), and vice versa. The Company is required to have minimum 3 (three) Independent 
Directors on the Board of Directors of the Company. However, for the part of the year, the 
Company had only 2 (two) Independent Directors but as on date of the report, the composition of 
Board with respect to Independent Directors is as per the Articles of the Company; 

 
4. As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder,  the Company is 

required to mention names of First Directors of the Company in the Articles of Association which 
has been duly complied with. The Company has also mentioned names of Directors post execution 
of Shares Purchase Agreement. It is advisable to remove this table from the Articles of Association 
of the Company as the Company is required to alter its Articles of Association upon every change 
in the Board of Directors of the Company. The Articles of association of the Company has to be  
amended by passing Special Resolution in the General Meeting of the Company. 

 
5. The Company has given intimation to Stock Exchange under Regulation 50(1) of Securities And 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
pertaining to interest payable on 11% Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable Non-Convertible 
Debentures, but the requirement of 11 working days prior intimation to the Stock Exchange is not 
complied with.  

 
6. As per Regulation 60(2) of Securities And Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has not given advance intimation of at 
least 7 clear working days of record date to the Stock Exchange pertaining to 11% Secured, Rated, 
Listed, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures. 
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We further report that:  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted except as mentioned in points no. 1,3 & 4 
above. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during the audit period under review, 
was duly made after complying with the necessary provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
made thereunder. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation 
at the meeting. 
 
All decisions at Board meetings and Committee meetings have been carried out unanimously as 
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the 
case may be. There were no dissenting views on any matter.  
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 
 
We further report that during the audit period the Company has: 

 
1. Duly passed Special Resolution for Alteration of Articles of Association of the Company pursuant 

to the amendment made to the principal shareholders agreement (dated 5th February, 2018)  by way 
of execution of the Second supplemental Shareholders Agreement.  
 

2. Duly passed Special Resolution for Approval for issuance of upto 250 (Two Hundred and Fifty) 
Secured Rated Listed Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten 
Lakhs only) each, aggregating upto Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Crores only), for cash, 
at par, in dematerialized form on a private placement basis (“Debentures”). 
 

3. Duly passed Special Resolution for Appointment of Ms. Rekha Singhal as Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO) of the Company. 
 

4. Duly passed Special Resolution for Approval of Business Plan of the Company for the Financial 
Year 2020-21. 

 
5. Duly passed Special Resolution pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 to invest the 

funds of the Company aggregating to Rs. 15 crores in the Equity Shares of Prayas Financial 
Services Limited as a downstream investment.  

 
6. Duly passed Special Resolution for Appointment of Mr. Pranav Desai as Chief Financial Officer 

(CFO) of the Company. 
 

7. Duly passed Special Resolution pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 to invest the 
funds of the Company aggregating to Rs. 5 crores in the Equity Shares of Uttrayan Financial 
Services Limited as a downstream investment and Rs. 5 crores in the form of subordinate debt. 
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8. Duly passed Ordinary Resolution for appointment of Mr. N. K. Maini as an Additional Director 
(Non Executive & Independent) on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 17th March, 2021. 

 
9. Duly passed special resolution under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 giving powers 

to Board of Directors to borrow money as and when required for an aggregate amount not 
exceeding Rs. 500 crores. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Date: 25th May, 2021 
Place: Ahmedabad      

For KASHYAP R. MEHTA & ASSOCATES,
COMPANY SECRETARIES,

FRN: S2011GJ166500

SD/-
KASHYAP R. MEHTA

PROPRIETOR
FCS-1821 : COP-2052 : PR-583/2019

      UDIN:  F001821C000366174
 
 

Disclaimer: Due to restricted movement amid COVID-19 pandemic, we have conducted the assignment 
by examining the Secretarial Records including Minutes, Documents, Registers and other records etc., 
and some of them received by way of electronic mode from the Company and could not be verified from 
the original records. The management has confirmed that the records submitted to us are true and 
correct. This Report is limited to the Statutory Compliances on laws / regulations /guidelines listed in 
our report which have been complied by the Company up to the date of this Report pertaining to 
Financial Year 2020-21. We are not commenting on the Statutory Compliances whose due dates are 
extended by Regulators from time to time due to COVID-19 or still there is time line to comply with such 
compliances. 

 
Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure 1 and forms an 

integral part of this report. 



CS KASHYAP R. MEHTA 
B. Com., LL.B., ACMA, FCS, ACIS (London) KASHYAP R. MEHTA & ASSOCIATES 

    COMPANY SECRETARIES
 

B – 403, ‘The First’, Beside ITC Narmada Hotel, Behind Keshavbaug, Vastrapur, Ahmedabad – 380 015. 
Tel. No.: 079-29702975 / 76 / 77    Mobile: 98250 15581     Email :kashyaprmehta@hotmail.com   Web : www.cskashyap.in 

 

 
 

Annexure - 1 
To, 
The Members, 
Ananya Finance For Inclusive Growth 
Private Limited. 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that 
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company. 
 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Date: 25th May, 2021 
Place: Ahmedabad      

For KASHYAP R. MEHTA & ASSOCATES,
COMPANY SECRETARIES,

FRN: S2011GJ166500

SD/-
KASHYAP R. MEHTA

PROPRIETOR
FCS-1821 : COP-2052 : PR-583/2019

UDIN : F001821C000366174
 
 

 
 
 
                                                           
 



 
Chartered Accountants

19th floor, Shapath-V, 
Opposite to Karnavati Club,

S.G. Highway, 
Ahmedabad – 380 015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To The Members of Ananya Finance for Inclusive Growth Private Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ananya Finance for Inclusive 
Growth Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st 
March 2021, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31 March  2021, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and 
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.  
 
Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent  of  the  Company  in  
accordance  with  the  Code  of  Ethics  issued  by  the  Institute  of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical  requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements under the provisions of the  Act and the Rules made thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained 
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial 
statements.  
 
Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 6.4 to the Financial Statement, which describes that the 
potential impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic on the Company’s financial results and 
particularly the impairment provision are dependent on future developments, which are 
highly uncertain. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
  



 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report. 

 
Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response 
1 Impairment of loans held at 

amortised cost and related 
disclosure: 
The Company exercises significant 
judgement using subjective 
assumptions over both when and 
how much to record as impairment 
for loans and estimation of the 
amount of the impairment provision 
for loans. 
The most significant areas are: 

 Impairment models: 
- Judgement is required to 

determine the inputs, 
methodologies, 
staging/restaging in case of 
Significant Increase in Credit 
Risk (“SICR”) cases and 
assumptions and these can 
significantly impact the 
provisions held. The most 
significant judgements 
include the segmentation 
level at which historical loss 
rates are calculated, the 
length of the recovery period 
and the loss emergence 
period applied to historical 
loss provisions. 

 Determination of probability 
of defaults (PD) and 
estimation of loss given 
defaults (LGD) based on the 
relevant factors. 
 

 Identification of impairment:  
For all loan exposures, 
collective impairment 
allowances are calculated 
using models which 
approximate credit 
conditions on homogenous 
portfolios of loans. 

 
 

Principal audit procedure 
performed 
 

 We read the Company’s Ind-AS 
109 based impairment 
provisioning policy; 

 We gained an understanding of 
the Company’s key credit 
processes comprising granting, 
booking, monitoring, staging 
and provisioning and tested the 
operating effectiveness of key 
controls over these processes; 

 We tested the completeness of 
loans, off balance sheet items 
and other financial assets 
included in the Expected Credit 
Loss (ECL) calculations as of 31 
March 2021;  

 For data from external sources, 
we understood the process of 
choosing such data, its 
relevance for the Company, and 
the controls and governance 
over such data; 

 We tested the data integrity and 
completeness of the Staging 
Report; 

 For a sample of exposures, we 
tested the appropriateness of 
staging into Stage 1, Stage 2 
and Stage 3; 

 For provision against exposures 
classified as Stage 1, Stage 2 
and Stage 3, we obtained an 
understanding of the Company’s 
provisioning methodology, 
consistency of various inputs 
and assumptions used, the 
reasonableness of the 
underlying assumptions and the 
sufficiency of the data used by 
the Management; 

 For a sample of exposures, we 
tested the appropriateness of 
determination of significant 



 

Inputs and Judgements used in 
determination of management 
overlay at various asset stages 
considering the current uncertain 
economic environment with the 
range of possible effects unknown 
to the country arising out of the 
COVID-19 Pandemic 

Since the loans form a major portion 
of the Company’s assets, and due to 
the significance of the judgments 
used in classifying loans into various 
stages as stipulated in Indian 
Accounting Standard (IND AS) 109 
and determining related impairment 
provision requirements and related 
disclosures, this is considered to be 
the area that had a greater focus of 
our overall Company audit and a 
key audit matter. 
As at March 31, 2021, the 
Company's total exposure at default 
for loans amounted to Rs. 
26,244.34 lacs and the related 
impairment provisions amounted to 
Rs. 1,067.37 lacs, comprising Rs. 
285.96 lacs of provision against 
Stage 1 and 2 exposures and Rs. 
781.41 lacs against exposures 
classified under Stage 3. 

Refer Note 45 to the Financial 
Statements. 

 

increase in credit risk and the 
resultant basis for classification 
of exposures into various 
stages; 

 For a sample of exposures, we 
tested the appropriateness of 
determining Exposure at Default 
(EAD); 

 For a sample of exposures, we 
tested the calculation of the 
Probability of Default (PD) and 
the Loss Given Default (LGD) 
used in the ECL calculations, 
including the appropriateness of 
the use of collateral and the 
resultant arithmetical 
calculations 

 We assessed the 
appropriateness of the 
calculation of the management 
overlay in response to COVID 19 
related economic uncertainty 

 We performed an overall 
assessment of the ECL provision 
levels at each stage including 
management’s assessment on 
COVID 19 impact to determine if 
they were reasonable 
considering the Company’s 
portfolio, risk profile, credit risk 
management practices and the 
macroeconomic environment. 

 We have assessed disclosures 
included in the Ind AS financial 
statements in respect of 
expected credit losses. 

 We have obtained written 
representations from 
management and those charged 
with governance whether they 
believe significant assumptions 
used in calculation of expected 
credit losses are reasonable. 

 
 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
  
 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The director’s report 
is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.  

 
 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
  



 

 
 In connection with our audit of the  financial statements, our responsibility is to read 

the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the  financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 

 When we read the Director’s report, if we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter those charged with 
governance as required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other 
Information’. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements   

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive 
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of  adequate accounting records in accordance  with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds  and  
other  irregularities;  selection  and  application  of  appropriate accounting  policies;  
making  judgments  and  estimates  that  are  reasonable  and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these financial statements.  

 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is  



 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

  



 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes 
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account.  
 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act.  
 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act. 
 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting. 
 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related 
to the managerial remuneration not applicable. 
 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,  2014, as 
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:  

 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 

position in its financial statements. (Refer Note 32) 
 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.  

 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
  



 

 
2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by 

the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.  
 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm’s Registration No. 117365W) 
 
 
 
 
 

Pallavi A. Gorakshakar 
(Partner) 

         (Membership No. 105035) 
(UDIN: 21105035AAAAEW6814) 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 25, 2021 
  

           -SD-



 

 
ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ section of our report of even date) 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ananya Finance 
for Inclusive Growth Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction 
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 
that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 
  



 

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the criteria for internal financial 
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm’s Registration No. 117365W) 
 
 
 
 
 

Pallavi A. Gorakshakar 
(Partner) 

         (Membership No. 105035) 
 (UDIN: 21105035AAAAEW6814) 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 25, 2021 

  

           -SD-



 

 

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ section of our report of even date) 
 

(i) In respect of fixed assets: 
  

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.   

 

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management 
in accordance with a programme of verification, which in our opinion provides 
for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.  
According to the information and explanations given to us no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does 
not have any immovable properties of acquired freehold land and building. In 
respect of immovable properties of building that have been taken on lease and 
disclosed as Right of Use Assets in the Ind AS financial statements, the lease 
agreements are in the name of the Company. 
 

(ii) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of 
the CARO 2016 is not applicable. 
 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
(iv) The Company is a registered non-banking finance company to which the provisions 

of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable, and hence 
reporting under clause (iv) of CARO 2016 is not applicable. 

 
(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

accepted any deposits from the public. Hence reporting under clause (v) of CARO 
2016 is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(vi) The maintenance of the cost records has not been specified by the Central 

Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the nature of 
services rendered by the Company. 

 
(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory 

dues:   

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory 
dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, 
Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it 
to the appropriate authorities. We are informed that the provisions of Sales 
Tax, Customs Duty and Excise Duty are not applicable to the Company. 
 

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,  
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and 
other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March, 2021 for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 

 



 

 
(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Sales 

Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax as on March 31, 2021 
which have not been deposited on account of disputes 
 

 

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, as at 
the reporting date, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or 
borrowings to financial institutions, banks and dues to debenture holders. The 
Company has not taken any loans from the government. 

 
(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, monies 

raised by way of initial public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans have 
been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which they were 
raised, other than temporary deployment pending application of proceeds.  

 
(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its 
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.  

 
(xi) As the Company is a private limited company, the provisions of section 197 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company and hence reporting under clause 
(xi) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

 
(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of 

paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 
 
(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of 
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required 
by the applicable accounting standards. 
 

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting 
under clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions during the year with its 
directors or the directors of its holding company or persons connected with them as 
referred to in Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
(xvi) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934 and it has obtained the registration. 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm’s Registration No. 117365W) 
 
 
 
 

Pallavi A. Gorakshakar 
(Partner) 

         (Membership No. 105035) 
 (UDIN: 21105035AAAAEW6814) 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 25, 2021 

           -SD-



(Rs. In Lakhs)

 Particulars Note
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 

[1] Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 4 1,584.94                    3,611.78                      
(b) Bank Balance other than (a) above 5 1,181.37                    1,503.87                      
(c) Loans 6 25,060.71                  25,302.03                    
(d) Investments 7 136.12                       56.58                            
(e) Other Financial assets 8 90.47                         7.08                              

28,053.61                  30,481.34                    
[2] Non-financial Assets
(a) Current tax assets (Net) 10 763.66                       1,017.85                      
(b) Deferred tax Assets (Net) 10 485.59                       522.34                          
(c) Property, Plant and Equipment 11 72.19                         14.98                            
(d) Other Intangible assets 12 0.81                            2.57                              
(e) Intangible assets under development 12.1 24.00                         26.72                            
(f) Right of Use Asset 13 159.39                       177.26                          
(g) Other non-financial assets 9 3.58                            40.92                            

1,509.22                    1,802.64                      

29,562.83                  32,283.98                    

[1] Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables 14

Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                              -                                     
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 14 53.16                         28.72                            

(II) Other Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                              -                                     
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises -                              -                                     

(b) Lease Obligation 15 167.18                       170.86                          
(c) Debt Securities 19 3,799.80                    1,493.05                      
(d) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 19 13,207.46                  15,699.67                    
(e) Other financial liabilities 16 2,930.77                    4,319.71                      

20,158.37                  21,712.01                    
[2] Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Provisions 17 73.24                         52.98                            
(b) Other non-financial liabilities 18 37.43                         43.41                            

110.67                       96.39                            
[3] EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 20 6,602.92                    6,602.92                      
(b) Other Equity 21 2,690.87                    3,872.66                      

9,293.79                    10,475.58                    

29,562.83                  32,283.98                    

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

sd sd sd
Pallavi A. Gorakshakar Brij Mohan Gaurav Gupta
Partner Chairman Managing Director

(DIN 00667210) (DIN 08663203)

sd sd
Pranav Desai Lavina Parikh
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 25th May 2021Date: 25th May 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Ananya Finance for Inclusive Growth Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Total Liabilities and Equity

ASSETS



(Rs. In Lakhs)

 Particulars  Note 
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 

(i) Interest Income 22              3,673.19                   4,541.24                      
(ii) Net gain on fair value changes 23              4.54                           29.41                           
(I) Total Revenue from operations 3,677.73                   4,570.65                      
(II) Other Income 25              71.00                        29.15                           

(III) Total Income (I+II) 3,748.73                   4,599.80                      

(i) Finance Costs 26              2,318.96                   2,524.17                      
(ii)

Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category 24              1,986.28                   329.82                         

(iii) Impairment on financial instruments 27              (69.86) 833.01                         
(iv) Employee Benefits Expenses 28              431.83                      377.82                         
(v) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 11 , 12 & 13 35.16                        9.69                             

(vi) Other expenses 29              192.86                      200.43                         
(IV ) Total Expenses 4,895.23                   4,274.94                      
(V ) Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV) (1,146.50)                 324.86                         
(VI ) Exceptional items -                                 -                                    
(V ) Profit/(Loss) before tax (III -IV ) (1,146.50)                 324.86                         
(VI) Tax Expense:

(1) Current Tax 10              -                                 257.19                         
(2) Adjustments of earlier year tax 10              42.62                        -                                    
(3) Deferred Tax 10              (2.59)                         (229.84)                       
Total Tax Expense 40.03                        27.35                          

(VII) Profit/(Loss) for the year (V - VI) (1,186.53)                 297.51                         
(VIII) Other Comprehensive Income 10.1

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 6.56                          (9.08)                           

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (1.82)                         2.52                             
Subtotal (A) 4.74                          (6.56)                           
(B) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -                                 -                                    
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -                                 -                                    
Subtotal (B) -                                 -                                    
Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) 4.74                          (6.56)                           

(IX) Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year (VII+VIII) (1,181.79)                 290.95                         
(X) Earnings per equity share

Basic (Rs.) (1.80)                         0.51                             
Diluted (Rs.) (1.80)                         0.51                             

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

sd sd sd
Pallavi A. Gorakshakar Brij Mohan Gaurav Gupta
Partner Chairman Managing Director

(DIN 00667210) (DIN 08663203)

sd sd
Pranav Desai Lavina Parikh
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 25th May 2021 Date: 25th May 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
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Ananya Finance for Inclusive Growth Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021

EXPENSES

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS



Ananya Finance for Inclusive Growth Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 31st 

March, 2021
For the year ended 31st 

March, 2020
A) Cash flows from operating activities
Net Profit/(loss) before tax                           (1,146.50)                               324.86 
Adjustments For:
     Depreciation and amortisation                                 35.16                                    9.69 

  Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment                                        -                                      0.25 
     Impairment on financial instruments                                (69.86)                               833.01 
     Interest income on loans                           (3,443.40)                           (4,437.06)

  Interest income received on loans                            3,257.51                            4,377.32 
     Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category                            1,986.28                               329.82 
     Interest income on Fixed Deposits                              (229.63)                              (104.14)
     Interest on Unwinding of Security Deposit                                  (0.16)                                  (0.04)
     Finance Cost                            2,318.96                            2,524.17 
     Finance Cost Paid                           (2,279.06)                           (2,352.06)
     Net Gain on Fair Value changes                                  (4.54)                                (29.41)
     Provision for Employee benefit expenses                                  32.81                                  38.27 
Operating cash flows generated before working capital changes 457.57                              1,514.68                          
     Increase in other assets                                (75.89)                                  (0.92)
     Increase in Trade Payables                                  24.44                                    9.76 
     Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities and provisions (1,348.02)                         681.84                              
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (941.90)                            2,205.36                          
     Income taxes (paid)/received 249.09                              (418.68)                             
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities after tax paid (692.81)                            1,786.68                          
Loan disbursed (Net) (1,489.21)                         (1,766.75)                         
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (A) (2,182.02)                         19.93                                

B) Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant, Equipment                                (42.74)                                (39.82)
Initial direct expenses incurred for Lease                                        -                                    (4.42)
Purchase of Intangible Assets / Intangibles under development                                  (2.08)                                (15.41)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment                                        -                                      0.16 
Purchase of Equity Shares                                (75.00)                                        -   
Proceeds from purchase and sale of units of mutual funds (Net) -                                    26.13                                
Interest received on Fixed Deposit and Other Investments 255.98                              82.31                                
Bank deposit/Margin money placed (250.00)                             (825.50)                             
Bank deposit/Margin money released 546.15                              573.73                              

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (B) 432.31                              (202.82)                            

C) Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of Compulsory Convertible Preference shares -                                    -                                    
Proceeds from issue of equity shares                                        -                              2,171.59 
 Share Issue Expenses                                        -                                    (2.43)
Proceeds from issue of Debt Securities 2,500.00                           1,500.00                           
Repayment of Debt Securities (247.51)                             -                                    
Proceeds from Other Borrowings 6,450.00                           10,425.00                        
Repayment of Other Borrowings                           (8,953.68)                        (10,626.89)
Repayment of Lease Liability                                (25.94)                                  (2.15)

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (C) (277.13)                            3,465.12                          

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (2,026.84)                         3,282.23                          
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,611.78                           329.55                              
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  (Refer note no. 4)                            1,584.94                            3,611.78 

Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using Indirect Method Prescribed under Ind AS 7.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

sd sd sd
Pallavi A. Gorakshakar Brij Mohan Gaurav Gupta
Partner Chairman Managing Director

(DIN 00667210) (DIN 08663203)

sd sd
Pranav Desai Lavina Parikh
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 25th May 2021 Date: 25th May 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 



Ananya Finance for Inclusive Growth Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2021

A  Equity Share Capital

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up:
Class A

Balance as at 1 April 2019 5,537.37                   
Changes during the year:
Fresh allotment of shares 1,065.55                   
Balance as at 31 March 2020 6,602.92                   
Balance as at 1 April 2020 6,602.92                   
Changes during the year:
Fresh allotment of shares -                             
Balance as at 31 March 2021 6,602.92                   

B Other Equity
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Statutory 
Reserves*

Securities Premium Retained Earnings

Balance as at 1 April 2019 294.73                      2,002.48                   180.89                     2,478.10                    

Securities Premium Received Against Fresh 
Issue

-                             1,106.04                   -                            1,106.04                    

Securities Premium Received on 
Conversion

-                             -                              -                            -                              

Amount utilised towards issue of bonus 
Shares

-                             
-                             

-                           
-                             

Share Issue Expense -                             (2.43)                         -                            (2.43)                          
Transferred from Retained earnings to 
Statutory Reserves*

59.50                         -                              (59.50)                     -                              

Net Profit for the year -                             -                              297.51                     297.51                       
Other Comprehensive Income/ (loss) - 
Employee Retirement benefits

-                             -                              (6.56)                        
(6.56)                          

Balance as at 31 March 2020 354.23                      3,106.09                   412.34                     3,872.66                   
Securities Premium Received Against Fresh 
Issue

-                             -                              -                            -                              

Share Issue Expense -                             -                              -                            -                             
Transferred from Retained earnings to 
Statutory Reserves*

-                             -                              -                            -                              

Net Loss for the year -                             -                              (1,186.53)                (1,186.53)                  
Other Comprehensive Income / (loss) - 
Employee Retirement benefits

-                             -                              4.74                         
4.74                           

Balance as at 31 March 2021 354.23                      3,106.09                   (769.45)                   2,690.87                    

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

sd sd sd
Pallavi A. Gorakshakar Brij Mohan Gaurav Gupta
Partner Chairman Managing Director

(DIN 00667210) (DIN 08663203)

sd sd
Pranav Desai Lavina Parikh
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 25th May 2021 Date: 25th May 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Reserves and Surplus

Total

* As required by section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934, the company maintains a reserve fund and transfers there
in a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any
dividend is declared. The company cannot appropriate any sum from the reserve fund except for the purpose specified by
Reserve Bank of India from time to time. Till date RBI has not specified any purpose for appropriation of Reserve fund
maintained under section 45-IC of RBI Act,1984.
For the year ended on 31-03-2021, the company has incurred loss hence no amount is transferred to the Statutory Reserve.



Ananya Finance for Inclusive Growth Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

1 Company overview

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 25th May 2021.

2 Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

2.1 Statement of compliance 

2.2 Basis of measurement

2.3 Measurement of fair values

The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
-         In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
-         In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

Level 1 – inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 – inputs are other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived prices)

Ananya Finance for Inclusive Growth Private Limited (the ‘Company’) is a Private limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under

the provisions of the Companies Act. Upto the previous year, the Company was regulated as a Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit Taking

Non-Banking Finance Company registered with RBI. During the current year, on 23rd February 2021 the Company had sought clarification from

RBI regarding applicability of Systemically Important Norms. Pending the receipt of any clarification from the RBI upto the date of approval of the

Financial Statements for the year ended March, 2021, the Company has Suo-Moto started following norms of RBI for Systemically Important Non-

deposit Taking Non-Banking Finance Company ('NBFC-ND-SI')

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date.

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies

Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Amendment Rules, 2016 and the provisions of the RBI guidelines/regulations to the extent applicable on an accrual basis.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair
values.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefit by using the

asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy.
The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable
and consists of the following three levels:

Level 3 – inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation
model based on assumption that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are
they based on available market data. 



2.4 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’ or ‘Rs.’) which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts are
rounded-off to the nearest Lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

Foreign Currency Transaction and Balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the spot rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the functional currency at the spot rate of
exchange at the reporting date. 
All differences arising on non–trading activities are taken to other income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Non–monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot exchange rates as at the date of
recognition.

2.5 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. 

2.5.1 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:
Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account
estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the
amount of depreciation / amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the
Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation / amortisation for
future periods is revised if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

2.5.2 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:
The Company recognizes interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the
expected life of the loans given / taken. This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-
cycle of the instruments, as well as expected changes to other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

2.5.3 Impairment of Financial Assets:
The measurement of impairment losses on loan assets and commitments, requires judgement, in estimating the amount and timing of future
cash flows and recoverability of collateral values while determining the impairment losses and assessing a significant increase in credit risk. The
Company’s Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculation is the output of a complex model with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the
choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL model that are considered accounting judgements and estimates
include:
- The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis
- Development of ECL model, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs
- Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL model 
It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its model in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.

2.5.4 Impairment of non-financial assets:
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
from the budget for the upcoming years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF
model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period. 

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are

made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial

statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of
assumptions in these financial statements are:



2.5.5 Employee benefits:
The cost of the defined benefit and long term employee benefit plans and the present value of the related obligations are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation, a
defined benefit and long term employee benefit obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

2.5.6 Expense Provisions & contingent liabilities: 
The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with the applicable Ind AS. A provision is
recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows. In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from
litigation and other claims against the Company. There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and
circumstances, are not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and
disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final
outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Company involved, it is not expected that such contingencies will have a material effect on its
financial position or profitability.

2.5.7 Deferred tax :
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
credits can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

2.5.8 Presentation of financial statements : 
The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division III to Schedule III to
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) applicable for Non-Banking Finance Companies (“NBFC”). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared
and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance
Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the Financial
Statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards and regulations issued by the RBI.

3 Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Revenue Recognition

Interest income

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and

costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a

constant rate of return over the expected life of the instrument. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at

various stages, if any, and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest and charges).

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably 

measured. However, where the ultimate collection of revenue lacks reasonable certainty, revenue recognition is postponed.

Interest income is recognised using effective interest rate (EIR) method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts through expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective 
interest rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not 
consider the expected credit losses.



If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk. The adjustment is booked as a
positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The
adjustment is subsequently amortised through Interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Dividend 
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Company and that the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Assignment transactions
In accordance with Ind AS 109, in case of assignment transactions with complete transfer of risks and rewards without any retention of residual
interest, gain arising on such assignment transactions is recorded upfront in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the corresponding asset is
derecognised from the Balance Sheet immediately upon execution of such transaction. Further, the transfer of financial assets qualifies for
derecognition in its entirety, the whole of the interest spread at its present value (discounted over the life of the asset) is recognised on the date
of derecognition itself as interest only strip receivable (interest strip on assignment) and correspondingly recognised as profit on derecognition of
financial asset.

Gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets
Gain or Loss on derecognition of financial asset is recognised upfront in the year of sale and is determined as the difference between the sale
price (net of selling costs) and carrying value of financial asset.

Other Income
All other incomes are recognised and accounted for on accrual basis when company satisfies the performance obligations and right to receive is
established.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the day the assets are purchased / sold. Tangible assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000
are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

The cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Changes in the expected
useful life, if any, are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting
estimates. 

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with these will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipments, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing
parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Depreciation on tangible assets is calculated on a straight-line basis, using the rates based on the useful lives estimated by the management

based on a technical evaluation, which is different from the useful life as specified in Schedule II of the Act. The Comparison between the useful

life estimated by the Management and the useful life as defined in Schedule II of the Act is as follows:

The residual value, useful live and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.



3.3 Intangible assets 

An intangible asset is recognised, only where it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will accrue to the enterprise
and the cost can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as "Intangible Assets Under Development".

3.4 Financial Instruments 

3.4.1 Recognition and Initial Measurement

The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition.

3.4.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement

a Non-derivative financial instruments 

i Financial assets carried at amortized cost

ii Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

iii Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

iv Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Separately purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortized over the expected duration of benefit which ranges from 3 to 5 years, on a straight-line basis. Intangible assets
acquired / purchased during the year are amortised on a pro-rata basis from the date on which such assets are ready to use.

The residual value, useful life and method of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively,
if appropriate.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (Other than financial assets

and liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of financial assets or financial liabilities on initial recognition. 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose

objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise

on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

The Company has made an irrevocable election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes

in fair value in other comprehensive income based on its business model. For such equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are

recognized in other comprehensive income.

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently measured at fair valued through profit or loss. Fair value
changes are recognised as other income in the Statement of Profit or Loss.



b Equity instruments 

c Instruments entirely equity in nature
An option embedded in financial instruments to exchange a fixed number of the company's own equity instruments for a fixed amount of any

currency are considered as equity instruments. Such instruments in financial statements are disclosed as Instruments entirely equity in nature.

3.4.3 Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation in respect of the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying value of the financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

3.4.4 Off-setting 

3.4.5 Modification

3.5 Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. 

3.5.1 Current Tax

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities. Incremental

costs directly attributable to the issuance of equity instruments are recognised as a deduction from equity instrument net of any tax effects.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights

to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are

transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain

control of the financial asset. If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains

either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when the company currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amount and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. 

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise

modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amount and / or timing of the contractual cash

flows either immediately or at a future date. The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximize collection and

minimize the risk of default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts to pay under the

original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default has already happened and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the

revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of

the loan (principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness).

Not all changes in terms of loans are considered as renegotiation and changes in terms of a class of obligors that are not overdue is not

considered as renegotiation and is not subjected to deterioration in staging.

Current tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

Current tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset, where company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.



3.5.2 Deferred Tax 

3.6 Impairment 

3.6.1 Financial assets 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability arises from initial
recognition of goodwill; or initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of
transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

The expected credit losses (ECLs) is recognized based on forward-looking information for all financial assets at amortized cost, no impairment loss
is applicable on equity investments.

At the reporting date, an allowance is required for the 12 month ECLs. If the credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition (Stage
1), an allowance (or provision) should be recognized for the lifetime ECLs for financial instruments for which the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition (Stage 2) or which are credit impaired (Stage 3).

The measurement of ECL is calculated using three main components: (i) probability of default (PD) (ii) loss given default (LGD) and (iii) the
exposure at default (EAD). The 12 month ECL is calculated by multiplying the 12 month PD, LGD and the EAD. The 12 month and lifetime PDs
represent the PD occurring over the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of the instrument respectively. The EAD represents the expected
balance at default, taking into account the repayment of principal and interest from the balance sheet date to the default event together with
any expected drawdowns of committed facilities. The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account,
among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the time value of money.

The Company applies a three-stage approach to measure ECL on financial assets accounted for at amortized cost. Assets migrate through the
following three stages based on the change in credit quality since initial recognition.

Stage 1: 12-months ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not credit impaired upon
origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events occurring within the next 12 months is recognized.
Exposures with days past due (DPD) less than or equal to 30 days are classified as stage 1. The Company has identified zero bucket and bucket
with DPD less than or equal to 30 days as two separate buckets.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL – not credit impaired

For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired, a lifetime
ECL is recognized. Exposures with DPD equal to 30 days but less than or equal to 89 days are classified as stage 2. At each reporting date, the
Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk for financial asset since initial recognition by comparing the risk of
default occurring over the expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax losses and carry forward of unused tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which those temporary differences, losses and tax credit can
be utilized, except when deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences arise from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on the tax rules and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, where company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and
where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realized. 

Considering the prudence, the Company recognizes impairment on financial asset on higher of the provision required as per the regulations of
Reserve Bank of India or using expected credit loss (ECL) model as prescribed in Ind AS for the financial assets which are not fair valued.



Presentation of ECL allowance for financial asset:
Expected Credit Loss on Financial assets measured at amortized cost are shown as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write off

3.6.2 Non-financial assets

Tangible and intangible assets 

Impaired loans and receivables are written off, against the related allowance for loan impairment on completion of the Company’s internal
processes and when the Company concludes that there is no longer any realistic prospect of recovery of part or all of the loan. For loans that are
individually assessed for impairment, the timing of write off is determined on a case by case basis. A write-off constitutes a de-recognition event.
The Company has a right to apply enforcement activities to recover such written off financial assets. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to the income statement.

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists the company
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assets net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL – credit impaired

Financial asset is assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
asset have occurred. For financial asset that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized on principal outstanding as at period end.
Exposures with DPD equal to or more than 90 days are classified as stage 3.

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there is
evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment.

ECL is recognized on EAD as at period end. If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified due to financial difficulties of the
borrower, then such asset is moved to stage 3, lifetime ECL under stage 3 on the outstanding amount is applied.

The Company assesses when a significant increase in credit risk has occurred based on quantitative and qualitative assessments. Exposures are
considered to have resulted in a significant increase in credit risk and are moved to Stage 2 when:

Quantitative test: Accounts that are 30 calendar days or more past due move to Stage 2 automatically. Accounts that are 90 calendar days or
more past due move to Stage 3 automatically.

Reversal in Stages: Exposures will move back to Stage 2 or Stage 1 respectively, once they no longer meet the quantitative criteria set out above.
For exposures classified using the qualitative test, when they no longer meet the criteria for a significant increase in credit risk and when any cure
criteria used for credit risk management are met.

The definition of default for the purpose of determining ECLs has been aligned to the Reserve Bank of India definition of default, which considers
indicators that the debtor is unlikely to pay and is no later than when the exposure is more than 90 days past due.

The measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date are based on historical experience, current
conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The measurement of ECL involves increased complexity and judgement, including
estimation of PDs, LGD, a range of unbiased future economic scenarios, estimation of expected lives and estimation of EAD and assessing
significant increases in credit risk.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.



3.7 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs that company has incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

The Company recognizes interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the
expected life of the loans given / taken. This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-
cycle of the instruments, as well as expected changes to other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur.

3.8 Employee Benefits 

3.9 Provisions 

3.10 Contingent Liability 

3.11 Contingent Asset

3.12 Cash and cash equivalent 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only be occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company. The company does not recognize a contingent asset but
discloses its existence in the financial statements. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset.

Investment income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. 

Short term employee benefits for salary that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period in which
employees render the related service are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and ESIC is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC. The company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund and ESIC scheme as an
expenditure, when an employee renders the related service.

The company operates one defined benefit plan and one long term benefit plan for its employees, viz., gratuity plan and leave encashment plan
respectively. The costs of providing benefits under the plans are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Actuarial
valuation is carried out using the projected unit credit method made at the end of each reporting date. Re-measurement of the net defined
benefit liability (asset) comprise of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability /
(asset). Re-measurement for defined benefit plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and will not be reclassified to profit or loss in a
subsequent period.

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where
there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank (including demand deposits) and in hand and short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.



3.13 Earnings per share

3.14 Lease

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets:
The company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of real estate properties that have a lease
term of less than 12 months. The company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over
the lease term.

3.15 Cash Flow Statement

3.16 Segment Reporting
The Company identifies segments as operating segments whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker
[CODM] i.e. Board of Directors, to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which
discrete financial information is available. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments of the Company. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the company.

3.17 Share-based Payments
Cash-settled transactions:
In case of cash-settled transactions, a liability is recognised for the fair value of cash-settled transactions. The fair value is measured initially and
at each reporting date up to and including the settlement date, with changes in fair value recognised in employee benefits expense. The fair value
is expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liability.

3.18 Securities issue expenses

Expenses incurred in connection with fresh issue of Share capital are adjusted against Securities premium reserve as permissible under section 52
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent any balance is available for utilisation in Securities premium reserve. Share issue expense in excess of
the balance in Securities premium reserve is expensed in the Statment of Profit and Loss.

3.19 Events after reporting date

Cash flows are reported using indirect method whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of the transactions of non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts and payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing and
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of
such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only
disclosed.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

As a lessee, the company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the
useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same
basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability. 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using
the incremental borrowing rate. 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset 
has been reduced to zero. The company presents right-of-use assets as separate line item in Non-current Assets and lease liabilities in Financial
Lease obligation in the balance sheet.



Ananya Finance for Inclusive Growth Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

4 Cash and cash equivalents (Rs. In Lakhs)

 Particulars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
Cash on hand 0.01 0.16
Balances with Banks;
- in current accounts 1,344.45 1,610.56
- in bank deposits (with original maturity of three months or less) 240.48                         2,001.06                      
Total 1,584.94                      3,611.78                      

5 Bank Balance other than (a) above (Rs. In Lakhs)

 Particulars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
 Bank deposit (with original maturity of more than three months) 1,181.37 1,503.87
Total                       1,181.37                       1,503.87 

6 Loans (Rs. In Lakhs)
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
A)  Loans (at amortised cost):

i) Term loans 26,127.03                    26,437.91                    
ii) Others - Loan to Employees 1.04                             1.33                             
Total (Gross) - A 26,128.07                   26,439.24                   
Less : Impairment loss allowance 1,067.36                      1,137.21                      
Total (Net)  - A 25,060.71                   25,302.03                   

B) i) Secured by Books Debts (Refer note 6.1) 12,373.19                    26,437.91                    
ii) Unsecured 13,754.88                    1.33                             
Total (Gross) - B 26,128.07                   26,439.24                   
Less : Impairment loss allowance 1,067.36                      1,137.21                      
Total (Net) - B 25,060.71                   25,302.03                   

C)  i) Loans in India
    a) Public Sector -                               
    b) Others 26,128.07                    26,439.24                    
Total (Gross) - C 26,128.07                   26,439.24                   
Less : Impairment loss allowance 1,067.36                      1,137.21                      
Total (Net) - C (i) 25,060.71                   25,302.03                   
ii) Loans outside India -                               -                               
Less : Impairment loss allowance -                               -                               
Total (Net) - C (ii) -                               -                               
Total (Net) - C (i+ii) 25,060.71                   25,302.03                   

Note 6.1

Note 6.2 There is no Loan Asset measured at FVTOCI or FVTPL or designated at FVTPL.

Note 6.3

Note 6.4

As per the terms of the contract with borrowers, the Company has first and exclusive charge on the book debts of the borrower,
equitable mortgage of property , hypothecation of assets, personal guarantee , corporate guarantee, security deposit etc.

The ongoing “second wave” of COVID-19 pandemic across certain parts of the Country has contributed decline in economic
activities. Various measures such as full or partial lockdown, night curfew and vaccination drives have been implemented by the
central/ state government or by the local authorities. 

Given the uncertainty over the potential macro-economic impact and external regulatory developments, the Management has
considered internal and external information up to the date of approval of these financial statements, and has estimated overlays
and made certain judgements in accordance with the policy of the Company for the purpose of determination of the provision for
impairment of financial assets carried at amortized cost and in relation to revenue recognition.
 
The Provision for expected credit loss as on March 31, 2021 aggregates Rs. 1,067.36 lakh (as on March 31, 2020 - Rs. 1,137.21 lakh)
which includes potential impact on account of the pandemic of Rs. 265.34 lakh (as on March 31, 2020 - Rs. 325.13 lakh). Based on
the current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company considers these provisions to be adequate.

The extent to which the pandemic including the current “second wave” that has significantly increased the number of cases in
India , will continue to impact the results of the Company will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain,
including, among other things, any new information concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic and any action to contain
its spread or mitigate its impact whether government-mandated or elected by the Company. Given the uncertainty over the
potential macro-economic condition the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of
approval of these financial statements and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic
conditions that impacts the Financial Statements, which will be given effect to in the respective future period.

Represents deposits for the current Year Rs. 1,078.06 lakh (As at 31st March 2020 :Rs. 1,493.05 /- lakh) held as margin money
against loans availed by the Company. 

 Particulars 

During the year,  the Company has revised the model used for computation of Expected Credit Losses (ECL) for wholesale portfolio 
. The Net impact of such change, has resulted in reduction in the ECL provision by Rs. 51.86 lakhs.



Ananya Finance for Inclusive Growth Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

7 Investments
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Amortised Cost
Fair value 
Through

profit or loss

Fair value 
Through

OCI
Total Amortised Cost

Fair value 
Through

profit or loss

Fair value 
Through

OCI
Total

Mutual funds (Quoted) -                        61.12 -                          61.12                    -                          56.58                      -                   56.58                   
Preference Shares (Unquoted) 70.19                    -                          -                          70.19                    70.19                      -                          -                   70.19                   
Equity Shares (Unquoted) -                        -                          75.00                      75.00                    -                          -                          -                   -                        
Total – Gross (A) 70.19                    61.12                     75.00                     206.31                 70.19                     56.58                     -                   126.77                 
(i)  Investments outside India -                        -                          -                          -                        -                          -                          -                   -                        
(ii) Investments in India 70.19                    61.12                      75.00                      206.31                 70.19                      56.58                      -                   126.77                 
Total (B) 70.19                    61.12                     75.00                     206.31                 70.19                     56.58                     -                   126.77                 
Less:- Allowance for Impairment Loss 70.19                    -                          -                          70.19                    70.19                      -                          -                   70.19                   
Total – Net Investments -                        61.12                     75.00                     136.12                 -                          56.58                     -                   56.58                   

Breakup of Investments:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

No. / Units Amount No. / Units Amount

Mutual Funds
SBI Credit Risk Fund Regular Growth 1,78,461 61.12                      1,78,461                56.58                    

Preference Shares
Optionally convertible cumulative redeemable
preference shares of Rs.10 each of Asmitha
Microfin Limited

7,01,930 70.19                      7,01,930                70.19                    

Equity Shares
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each of Prayas Financial
service Private Limited   

5,00,000 75.00                      -                          -                        

Sub Total (A) 206.31                   126.77                 
Less: Allowance for Impairment Loss (B) (70.19)                   (70.19)                 
Total (A - B) 136.12                   56.58                    

As at 31st March, 2020

Particulars

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March, 2021



Ananya Finance for Inclusive Growth Private Limited
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8 Other Financial Assets (Rs. In Lakhs)

 Particulars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
Unsecured and Considered Good
Rental Deposits 1.53 2.10
Other Receivable 88.94 4.98
Total 90.47                          7.08                            

9 Other non-financial assets (Rs. In Lakhs)

 Particulars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
Prepaid Expenses 3.56 4.64
Staff Advances 0.02 0.06
Balance with Government Authorities -                              6.22
Capital Advance -                              30.00                         
Total 3.58                            40.92                         

10
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Current income tax -                              257.19                       
MAT Credit Entitlement -                             
Deferred tax due to origination of temporary difference (2.59)                          (229.84)                     
Adjustments of earlier year tax 42.62                       -                          
Total 40.03                          27.35                         

10.1 Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/ (asset)

Before Tax_OCI 6.56 (9.08)                          
Tax Expense_OCI (1.82)                          2.52                           
Net of Tax 4.74                           (6.56)                          

10.2 The details of income tax assets and liabilities and Deferred tax liabilities/asset : (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
Tax Recoverable (net) 763.66 1,017.85                    
Total 763.66 1,017.85                    

Deferred Tax (Liabilities) / Assets (Net ) 383.95 383.18                       
Tax Credit Entitlement under MAT 101.64 139.16                       
Total 485.59                       522.34                       

Significant component of income tax expenses for the year ended March 31,2021 and March 31,2020 are as 
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10
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Current income tax -                         257.19                      
MAT Credit Entitlement -                            
Deferred tax due to origination of temporary difference (2.59)                     (229.84)                    
Adjustments of earlier year tax 42.62                 -                        
Total 40.03                    27.35                        

10.1 Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/ (asset)

Before Tax_OCI 6.56 (9.08)                        
Tax Expense_OCI (1.82)                     2.52                          
Net of Tax 4.74                      (6.56)                        

10.2 The details of income tax assets and liabilities and Deferred tax liabilities/asset : (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 

Advance Income Tax 1,247.66 1,496.76               
Income Tax Provisions (484.00) -478.91                     
Total 763.66 1,017.85                  

Deferred Tax (Liabilities) / Assets (Net ) 383.95 383.18                      
Tax Credit Entitlement under MAT 101.64 139.16                      
Total 485.59                  522.34                      

Significant component of income tax expenses for the year ended March 31,2021 and March 31,2020 are as under:



10.3 Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

31st March, 2021 

Charge/
(credit) to
profit and

loss

Charge/
(credit) to

OCI

MAT credit 
utilisation

 As at 
31st March, 

2020 

Charge/
(credit) to
profit and

loss

Charge/
(credit) to

OCI

MAT 
credit 

utilisation

As at 1st 
April, 
2019

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Application of EIR on financial assets                      32.66 (18.25)                      50.91            1.01         -           -           49.90       
Provision for employee benefits                      22.63 3.38                          (1.82)                   21.07            (4.51)        2.52         -           23.06       
Allowance for ECL                   296.94 (38.96)                      335.90             231.74    -           -           104.16    
MAT credit entitlement                   101.64 (37.52)          139.16             -           -           (67.70)     206.86    
Property, plant and equipment / Intangible assets                        3.50 0.26                          3.24                 0.36         -           -           2.88         
Others                      28.22 15.74                       12.48               10.02       -           -           2.46         

485.59                  (37.83)                      (1.82)                  (37.52)          562.76          238.62    2.52         (67.70)     389.32    

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Application of EIR on financial liabilities                            -   37.25                       (37.25)              (10.11)     -           -           (27.14)     
Others                            -   3.17                          (3.17)                1.33         -           -           (4.50)        

-                        40.42                       -                      -                (40.42)          (8.78)       -           (31.64)     

Net Deferred Tax Assets 485.59              2.59                      (1.82)               (37.52)      522.34      229.84 2.52     (67.70) 357.67 

MAT credit entitlement is available for a period of 13 years as on 31/03/2021.

10.4

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 For the year 
ended  31st 
March, 2021 

 For the year ended  
31st March, 2020 

Accounting Profit/(Loss) Before tax (1,146.50)             324.86                     
Normal / MAT tax rate 27.82                    27.82                       
Tax liability on accounting profit (318.96)                90.38                       

Tax Effect of Non deductible Expenses -                        1.38                          
Tax Effect of Deductible Expenses -                        (9.40)                        
Current year depreciation on which no deferred tax asset is recognised -                        (15.83)                      
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax depreciation -                        (21.67)                      
Reversal of previously recognised tax depreciation -                        -                            
Others 316.37                  (17.51)                      
Total income tax expense (2.59)                     27.35                       

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the
income before income taxes is summarized below:

Deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation has been recognised to the extent of future expected profit estimated considering the planned level of operations and borrowings that will generate sufficient future 
taxable income.
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11 Property Plant and Equipments
(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 
1st April, 2020

Additions Disposals
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

1st April, 2020
For the year Disposals

As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
1st April, 2020

Furniture and fixtures 1.32                       30.21                        -                             31.53                        0.50                     5.28                     -                       5.78                          25.75                           0.82                     
Office equipment 8.97                       12.89                        -                             21.86                        3.70                     3.49                     -                       7.19                          14.67                           5.27                     
Computer 14.24                    7.85                          -                             22.09                        5.35                     4.99                     -                       10.34                       11.75                           8.89                     
Electrical Installations -                         3.41                          -                             3.41                          -                       0.56                     -                       0.56                          2.85                             -                       
Leasehold Improvements -                         18.38                        -                             18.38                        -                       1.21                     -                       1.21                          17.17                           -                       
Total 24.53                    72.74                        -                             97.27                        9.55                     15.53                   -                       25.08                       72.19                           14.98                  

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 
1st April, 2019

Additions Disposals
As at 

31st March, 2020
As at 

1st April, 2019
For the year Disposals

As at 
31st March, 2020

As at 
31st March, 2020

As at 
1st April, 2019

Furniture and fixtures 0.53                       0.79                          -                             1.32                          0.19                     0.31                     -                       0.50                          0.82                             0.34                     
Office equipment 8.86                       0.11                          -                             8.97                          1.68                     2.02                     -                       3.70                          5.27                             7.18                     
Computer 5.95                       8.92                          0.63                           14.24                        2.60                     2.97                     0.22                     5.35                          8.89                             3.35                     
Total 15.34                    9.82                          0.63                           24.53                        4.47                     5.30                     0.22                     9.55                          14.98                           10.87                  

12 Other Intangible Assets
(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 
1st April,2020

Additions Disposals
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

1st April, 2020
For the year Disposals

As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
1st April, 2019

Software (Other than Internally Generated) 7.94                       -                            -                             7.94                          5.37                     1.76                     -                       7.13                          0.81                             2.57                     
Total 7.94                       -                            -                             7.94                          5.37                     1.76                     -                       7.13                          0.81                             2.57                     

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 
1st April, 2019

Additions Disposals
As at 

31st March, 2020
As at 

1st April, 2019
For the year Disposals

As at 
31st March, 2020

As at 
31st March, 2020

As at 
1st April, 2019

Software 6.99                       0.95                          -                             7.94                          2.47                     2.90                     -                       5.37                          2.57                             4.52                     
Total 6.99                       0.95                          -                             7.94                          2.47                     2.90                     -                       5.37                          2.57                             4.52                     

12.1 Intangible Assets Under Development
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 
As at 

31st March, 2020
Intangible Assets Under Development 24.00                    26.72
Total 24.00 26.72

13 Right of use assets
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Buildings
 As at 31st March 2019 -                            

Addition during the year 178.75                      
Amortisation for the Year 1.49                          

 As at 31st March, 2020 177.26                      
Addition during the year -                            
Amortisation for the Year 17.87                        

 As at 31st March, 2021 159.39                      

Particulars
Gross block Depreciation Net block

Particulars
Gross block Depreciation Net block

Particulars
Gross block Depreciation Net block

Particulars
Gross block Depreciation Net block
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14 Payables
(Rs. In Lakhs)

 Particulars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                             -                           

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

53.16 28.72

Total 53.16                         28.72                       

14.1 Disclosure in respect of Micro and Small  Enterprises :

A the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 
supplier at the end of each accounting year

-                             -                           

B the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with 
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during each accounting year

-                             -                           

C the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

-                             -                           

D the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year

-                             -                           

E the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006.

-                             -                           

15 Lease Obligation
(Rs. In Lakhs)

 Particulars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
Lease liabilities (Refer Note 34) 167.18 170.86
Total 167.18                       170.86                     

16 Other Financial Liabilities
(Rs. In Lakhs)

 Particulars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
(a) Payable to capital creditors -                             4.80
(b) Payable for employee benefits
    (i) Gratuity (funded)  (Refer Note 43) 8.11 22.76
(c)  Unspent amount of Poorest State Initiative Growth project
(Refer note 16.1) 42.37 41.76
(d) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 192.07 187.04
(e) Security Deposits (Refer note 16.2) 2,688.22 4,063.35
Total 2,930.77                    4,319.71                 

Note 16.1

Note 16.2

17 Provisions
(Rs. In Lakhs)

 Particulars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
Provision for employee benefits
   (i) Compensated absences 62.95 42.69
   (ii) Performance linked incentive  (Refer note 37) 10.29 10.29
Total 73.24                         52.98                       

18 Other Non-financial liabilities 
(Rs. In Lakhs)

 Particulars 
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
(a) Advance from customers 2.30                           6.36
(b) Statutory Remittances 34.99 35.65
(c)  Other Liability 0.14 1.40
Total 37.43                         43.41                       

The aforementioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to
applicability under the MSMED Act. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

SIDBI had granted in Mar 2015, an interest free loan of Rs. 1,500.00/- lakhs to support MFI partners under Poorest
State Inclusive Growth Project wherein the Company was required to create a fund @ 11% of the loan amount which
was required to be utilized for the capacity building of the MFIs boarded under the project. The said project was
successfully completed in March 2018 and the balance fund was then approved to be utilized under a new project Skill 
and Enterprise Development Project till March 2020. As a balance amount of Rs.41.76 lakh still remains unutilized, the
Company has obtained approvals from SIDBI to utilize the unspent amount for extending loans to small and medium
MFI Partners. In Current year, out of total Interest earned from loan disbursed from fund Interest of Rs 61.11 Lakhs is
ploughed back into fund.

The Company accept security deposits up to 10 percent of the loan amount for the full tenure of the loan against the
loan disbursed.
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19 Debt Securities
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

Non-Convertible Debentures (At Amortised Cost) - Secured 3,812.50 1,500.00
Less: Unamortised Debenture Issue Expense (12.70)                            (6.95)                                 

Total (A) 3,799.80                        1,493.05                           
Debt Securities in India 3,799.80                        1,493.05                           
Debt Securities outside India -                                 -                                    
Total (B) 3,799.80                        1,493.05                           

 Non Convertible Debenture - instrument wise details (Rs. In Lakhs)

Residual Maturity
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 

12.76%* Non Convertible Debentures. Date of Maturity 23rd
May 2022

                        1,312.50                            1,500.00 

11.00%* Non Convertible Debentures. Date of Maturity 29th
June 2023

                        2,500.00                                        -   

Total (A)                         3,812.50                            1,500.00 
Unamortised Transaction Costs(B)                             -12.70                                  -6.95 
Total (A)+(B)                         3,799.80                            1,493.05 
* Net of taxes

19 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

(a)Term loans (Secured)
(i)from banks (At Amortized Cost) 5,056.53 6,897.93
(ii)from other parties (At Amortized Cost) 8,211.12 8,928.39

Less: Unamortised transaction costs_Borrowings                             (60.51)                              (126.96)
Total 13,207.14                     15,699.36                        

(b)Loans repayable on demand
(i)from banks (At Amortized Cost)_on demand 0.32 0.31
(i)from other parties (At Amortized Cost)_on demand -                                 -                                    

Total (A) 13,207.46                      15,699.67                         
Borrowings in India 13,207.46                      15,699.67                         
Borrowings outside India -                                 -                                    
Total (B) 13,207.46                      15,699.67                         

Terms and Conditions of Borrowings (Rs. In Lakhs)

Name of the lender  As at 
31st March, 2021 

 As at 
31st March, 2020 

Residual Maturity Rate of Interest

Secured term loans from banks (Refer Note 19.1)
State Bank of India -                                 325.00                              Loan Closed 10.75% -10.95%
Union Bank of India 946.95                           1,752.81                           1-3 years 10.85%
Yes Bank Ltd -                                 583.33                              Loan closed 12.85%
Bandhan Bank Ltd 428.57                           1,214.29                           Less than 12 months 12.50%
IDFC First Bank Ltd 2,681.01                        2,616.27                           1-3 years 12.25% -12.50%
National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development 1,000.00                        -                                    1-3 years 7.05%
Suryoday Small finance Bank Ltd -                                 406.23                              Loan closed 12.50%
Total (A) 5,056.53                        6,897.93                           -                              -                      
Secured loan from others (Refer Note 19.1)
Nabkisan Finance Ltd 540.51                           1,003.32                           1-3 years 11.50%
Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited -                                 182.77                              Loan closed 12.00%
Avanse Financial Services Limited -                                 46.58                                Loan closed 12.50%
Micro Units Development & Refinance Agency Limited 561.00                           1,498.00                           1-3 years 11.00%-11.50%
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 0.08                                413.33                              Loan closed 13.50%
Nabard Financial Services Limited 837.61                           1,708.11                           1-3 years 12.90%-13.50%
Vivriti Capital Private Limited 1,171.36                        819.68                              1-3 years 13.00%-13.5%
Eclear Leasing & Finance Pvt  Ltd 963.65                           -                                    1-3 years 14.00%
Caspian Impact Inv Pvt  Ltd 750.00                           -                                    1-3 years 13.50%
MAS Finance Services Ltd 958.33                           -                                    1-3 years 12.00%
Western Capital Advisors Pvt ltd 700.00                           -                                    1-3 years 14.00%
Nabsamruddhi Finance Limited 749.34                           1,444.06                           1-3 years 11.75%-12.85%
Maanveeya Development & Finance Pvt.ltd. 979.24                           1,812.54                           1-3 years 13.5%-13.75%
Total (B) 8,211.12                        8,928.39                           

Unamortised Transaction Costs (C )                             (60.51)                             (126.96)

Total (A + B + C)                       13,207.14                          15,699.36 

Notes:
Note 19.1
Note 19.2

Note 19.3

Non Convertible debentures are secured by way of first ranking exclusive charge on bookdebts to the extent of
110% of principal debt outstanding. During the year, the company had issued debentures on 30th June 2020 with
coupon rate of 11% payable semi annually and principal is payable at the end of three years.

Secured loans are Secured by way of Fixed deposit, Units of Mutual Fund and exclusive charge created against book debt.
The Company has not defaulted in repayment of Principal as well as Interest in terms of borrowings outstanding as at Balance sheet Date.

Borrowings have been measured at Amortised Cost. There are no borrowings measured at FVTPL or designated as FVTPL as at Balance 
sheet Date.



Ananya Finance for Inclusive Growth Private limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

20 Share capital (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 As at 

31st March, 2021 
 As at 

31st March, 2020 
Authorised:
Class A : 13,50,00,000 (As at 31st March 2020 :13,50,00,000) Equity Shares of 
Rs. 10 each.

13,500.00 13,500.00

Class B : 1,00,00,000 (As at 31st March 2020 : 1,00,00,000) Equity Shares of 
Rs. 10 each 

                     1,000.00                     1,000.00 

5,50,00,000 (As at 31st March 2020 : 5,50,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 10 
each

                     5,500.00                     5,500.00 

Total                    20,000.00                  20,000.00 
Issued, subscribed and paid-up:
6,60,29,214 (As at March 31, 2020: 6,60,29,214) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  
Class A, fully Paid-up

                     6,602.92                     6,602.92 

Total 6,602.92                     6,602.92                    

(Rs. In Lakhs)
20.1 Reconciliation of Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 

reporting period:
Particulars Number of  Shares Amount (Rs.) Number of  Shares Amount (Rs.)

Equity Shares
At the Commencement of the year                6,60,29,214                     6,602.92                5,53,73,741                    5,537.37 
Fresh issue of equity shares (Refer Note below)                                  -                                   -                  1,06,55,473                    1,065.55 
Total Equity Shares at the end of the year 6,60,29,214               6,602.92                    6,60,29,214               6,602.92                   

20.2

20.3 Particulars of Shareholder holding more than 5% of Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Name of the Shareholder Number of
Shares

% of holding Number of
Shares

% of holding

Class A
Gojo & Company Inc.                4,64,63,079 70.37%                3,63,16,030 55.00%
Sudha Kapurchand Kothari - as a trustee of Indian Foundation for Inclusive 
Growth

                   36,91,570 5.59%                1,05,61,050 15.99%

Stichting Capital 4 Development                1,57,81,701 23.90%                1,57,81,701 23.90%
Total                6,59,36,350 99.86%                6,26,58,781 94.90%

As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

Rights, Preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares
1. The Company has two class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per Equity Share. All Equity Shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the
Company's residual assets. Class A Equity Shares have all rights and privileges available to an ordinary Equity Shareholder. Class B Equity Shares entitle its holders,
over and above all rights and privileges available to an ordinary Equity Shareholder, also to a special right with respect to the Bonus Equity Shares allotted by the
Company from time to time. 
2. The Equity Shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time subject to payment of dividend to Preference Shareholders. 
3. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after
distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held.

As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

During the financial year 2019-20, the Company has issued 1,06,55,473 Class A Equity Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- at issue price of Rs. 20.38.



20.4 Aggregate number of Shares issued other than cash, during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the reporting date

Particulars
 Aggregate No. of 

Share as at
31st March 2021 

 Aggregate No. of 
Share as at

31st March 2020 

 Aggregate No. of 
Share as at

31st March 2019 

 Aggregate No. of 
Share as at

31st March 2018 

 Aggregate No. of 
Share as at

31st March 2017 
Fully paid up Equity Shares issued as bonus Shares. 1,44,62,605.00          1,44,62,605.00         1,44,62,605.00          1,17,31,299.00        90,00,000.00            
Note:-On 18th December 2018, the Company issued  27,31,306 bonus Shares to Class B Equity Shareholders in the ratio of 1.5 Shares for every 1 Share held by the Shareholders.

21 Other Equity

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Statutory Reserves Securities Premium Retained Earnings

 As at 31st March 2019 294.73                       2,002.48                   180.89                       2,478.10                  
Securities Premium Money Received Against Fresh Issue -                              1,106.04                   -                              1,106.04                  
Share Issue Expense -                              (2.43)                         -                              (2.43)                        
Transferred from Retained earnings to Statutory Reserves 59.50                          -                             (59.50)                        -                            
Net Profit for the year -                              -                             297.51                       297.51                     
Other Comprehensive Income/ (loss) -                              -                             (6.56)                           (6.56)                        

 As at 31st March, 2020 354.23                       3,106.09                   412.34                       3,872.66                  
Securities Premium Money Received Against Fresh Issue -                              -                            
Share Issue Expense -                              -                             -                            
Transferred from Retained earnings to Statutory Reserves -                              -                              -                            
Net Profit for the year -                               (1,186.53)                   (1,186.53)                
Other Comprehensive Income/ (loss) -                               4.74                            4.74                          
IND AS entry Adjustment -                               -                             -                              -                            

 As at 31st March, 2021 354.23                       3,106.09                   (769.45)                      2,690.87                  

Description of the nature and purpose of Other Equity :

Statutory reserve

Securities premium 

Retained earnings

Special Reserve represents the reserve created pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (the “RBI Act”). In terms of Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, a Non-
Banking Finance Company is required to transfer an amount not less than 20 per cent of its net profit to a Reserve Fund before declaring any dividend. The reserve
fund can be utilised only for limited purposes as specified by RBI from time to time and every such utilisation shall be reported to the RBI within specified period of
time from the date of such utilisation.

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained earnings or accumulated surplus represents total of all profits retained since Company’s inception. Retained earnings are credited with current year
profits, reduced by losses, if any, dividend payouts, transfers to General reserve or any such other appropriations to specific reserves.

Reserves and Surplus
Total
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22 Interest Income
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 
On Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost
Interest on Loans 3,443.40                     4,437.06                         
Interest on deposits with Banks 229.63                        104.14                            
Interest on Unwinding of Security Deposit 0.16                             0.04                                 
Total 3,673.19                     4,541.24                         

23 Net gain on fair value changes
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 
Net Gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit 
or loss
On Trading Portfolio
- Investments 4.54                             29.41                              

4.54                             29.41                              
Fair Value Changes:
(i) Realised -                               26.13                              
(ii) Unrealised 4.54                             3.28                                 
Total 4.54                             29.41                              

24 Net Gain / (Loss) on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 
On Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost
Bad debts written off (net) (1,986.28)                   (329.82)                          
Total (1,986.28)                   (329.82)                          

25 Other Income
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 
Interest on Income Tax Refund 35.22                           16.04                              
Miscellaneous Income 35.78                           13.11                              

Total 71.00                           29.15                              
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26 Finance Costs
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 
On Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost
Interest on borrowings other than debt securities 1,688.92 2,090.59
Interest on debt securities 396.70 181.41
Interest on Other Financial Liabilities (Security Deposit) 196.59 230.31
Interest expense on Lease Liabilities 22.26 1.85
Other borrowing cost 14.49 20.01
Total 2,318.96                    2,524.17                    
Note:- There is no financial liability measured at FVTPL.

27 Impairment on financial instruments
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 
Loans (At Amortized Cost) -69.86 833.01

Total -69.86                        833.01                        

28 Employee Benefits Expenses
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 
Salaries and wages 364.36 311.93
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 43) 28.16 22.10
Contribution to Gratuity Fund (Refer Note 43) 12.55 11.78
Share based payments to employees (Refer Note 37) -                              2.60
Compensated Absences 20.26 23.89
Staff welfare expenses 6.50 5.52

Total 431.83                       377.82                        

29 Other expenses 
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 
Rent, taxes and energy costs 24.16 28.86
Repairs and maintenance 1.86 3.24
CSR Expenditure 11.50 10.00
Communication Costs 5.71 5.26
Printing and stationery 0.77 1.01
Advertisement and publicity 1.74 3.44
Director’s fees, allowances and expenses 11.40 12.45
Auditor’s fees and expenses (Refer Note 35) 29.27 26.27
Legal and Professional charges 65.13 43.00
Insurance 5.54 3.50
Office Expenses (Refer below Note) 5.94 7.16
Travelling Expenses (Refer below Note) 14.85 39.13

Net Loss on derecognition of property, plant and equipment -                              0.25                            
Miscellaneous Expense  (Refer below Note) 14.99 16.86
Total 192.86                       200.43                        

Note Includes below payments done in Foreign Currency
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 
Travelling Expense -                              2.22                            
Office Expense 0.21                            -                              
Miscellaneous Expense 0.17                            0.45                            
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30
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 For the Year ended 

31st March, 2021 
 For the Year ended 

31st March, 2020 
Net profit/(loss) for the year (1,186.53) 297.51
Weighted average no. of shares (In nos.) 6,60,29,214                                         5,78,37,874 
Face value of equity shares                                      10                                       10 
Earning Per Share (Basic and Diluted) (1.80) 0.51

Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard (IND-AS) 33 Earnings per Share
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31 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure

(Rs. in lakhs)

Nature of CSR Activity
 For the Year ended 

31st March, 2021 
 For the Year ended 

31st March, 2020 

Nuturing Women Enterpreneurship 9.00                                10.00                               
Covid-19 Revitalization project-2020 2.50                                -                                    
Total 11.50                              10.00                               

32  Contingent liability
(Rs. In Lakhs)

820.96                       771.08                     

Management is of the view that no liability shall arise on the company for any of the income tax related litigations.
In the case mentioned above, outflow is not probable and hence not provided by the Company.

During the financial year 2020-2021, the Company has spent Rs.11.50 Lakhs  (P.Y. Rs. 10.00 lakhs) out of the total amount of Rs. 9.00 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 10.00 lakhs) 
required to be spent as per section 135 of The Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR).

Particulars

Claims against the company not acknowledge as debt - Income Tax *

* Rs. Nil lakhs (As at 31st March, 2020 :Rs. 92.00 lakhs) paid under protest for income tax litigations and Rs.Nil lakhs (As at 31st March, 2020 :Rs.47.84 lakhs) TDS
adjusted against demand. 

As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020
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33  Segment information

34  Leases

Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabilities
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Upto 3 months
Over 3 months upto 

1year
Over 1 year upto 3 

years
Over 3 years upto 5 

years
Over 5 years Total

As at 31st March, 2021                                   6.78                                     20.45                            58.61                           64.62                        146.29                        296.75 
As at 31st March, 2020                                   6.46                                     19.47                            55.82                           61.54                        179.39                        322.68 

Lease Liability movement (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Lease Liability
As at 1st April, 2019 -                                    
Addition during the year 171.16                             
Interest on Lease Liability 1.85                                  
Lease rent paid for the year (2.15)
As at 31st March, 2020 170.86                             
Addition during the year -                                    
Interest on Lease Liability 22.26                               
Lease rent paid for the year (25.94)                             
As at 31st March, 2021 167.18                             

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM is
considered to be the Board of Directors who makes strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments.

The CODM considers the entire business of the Company on a holistic basis to make operating decisions reviews the operating results of the Company as a

whole. Further the Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. financing, which has similar risks and returns for the purpose of Ind AS 108 “Operating

segments”, and is considered to be the only reportable business segment. Further, The Company is operating in India which is considered as a single

geographical segment.”

The Company has taken office premises under lease. The lease terms in respect of such premises are on the basis of individual agreement entered into with the
respective landlords. The Company has given refundable interest free security deposits in accordance with the agreed terms. All the leases of the company are
short term lease (i.e. tenure of less than 1 year) except one lease with a tenure of 10 years and a lockin of 6 years. Maturity Analysis of such lease is as stated
below 



Amount Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 For the Year ended 

31st March, 2021 
 For the Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 
Interest on Lease Liabilities 22.26                               1.85                                      
Amortisation of ROU Assets 17.87                               1.49                                      
Expense related to Short-term Leases 9.21                                  22.98                                    

Amount Recognised in Statement of Cash Flows
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 For the Year ended 

31st March, 2021 
 For the Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 
Under Financing activities (Repayment of lease liability)                                25.94                                       2.15 
Under Operating activities (Short term leases)                                   9.21                                     22.98 
Total cash outflow for leases 35.15                               25.13                                    

Lease Commitments for short-term leases

35 Payment to Auditors (Excluding GST)
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 For the Year ended 

31st March, 2021 
 For the Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 

Audit fees                                25.00 22.50                                    
Certification services                                   0.95 1.55                                      
Reimbursement of expenses                                   0.90 0.05                                      

Total                                26.85                                     24.10 
Goods and Services Tax on above (Refer Note Below)                                   2.42                                       2.17 
Total 29.27                               26.27                                    

The Company has entered into Short term leases for office premises, tenure of which is less than a year. There are
no obligations or commitments with reference to such short term leases as at reporting date as such leases are
cancellable at the discretion of leasee i.e. the Company.

Company being NBFC can avail only 50% of available credit of GST paid on audit fee



36 Related party disclosures

Names
Gojo & Company
Satya Micro Capital Ltd

Stichting Capital 4 Development

Subraya Shankar Bhat -Managing Director upto 31.01.2020
Gaurav Gupta -Managing Director from 01.02.2020
Rekha Singhal - Chief Financial Officer upto 18.01.2021
Pranav Desai - Chief Financial Officer from 19.01.2021

(b) Particulars of related party transactions
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Name of the related party

 For the Year ended 
31st March, 2021 

 For the Year ended 
31st March, 2020 

Gojo & Company Inc -                               1,103.60                    

Stitching Capital 4 Development -                               1,067.99                    

Subraya Shankar Bhat -Managing Director upto 31.01.2020 -                               45.96                          

Gaurav Gupta -Managing Director from 01.02.2020 52.81                           8.42                            
Rekha Singhal - Chief Financial Officer upto 18.01.2021 14.71                           -                              
Pranav Desai - Chief Financial Officer from 19.01.2021 8.94                             -                              

300.00 1,500.00                    
1,737.50                     254.17                        

184.57                        30.07                          
3.00                             -                              

660.00                        75.00                          
90.00                           25.00                          
11.78                           2.39                            

Related parties as defined under para 9 of Ind AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ have been identified based on representations made by key managerial
personnel and information available with the Company.

Issue of fresh Equity Shares 
(FY 19-20 : 54,15,112 Equity Shares at Rs. 20.38/- 
each; 
Issue of fresh Equity Shares 
(FY 2019-20 : 52,40,361 Equity Shares at Rs. 
20.38/- each; 

Salary

Satya Micro Capital Loan given
Loans Principal Collection
Loans Interest Income

Security Deposit Received
Security Deposit Repaid
Interest Expense on Security Deposit

Salary
Salary

Processing Fee Income

Consultancy Charges

Parent Company
Entity over which parent has significant influence

Entity having significant influence over the 
company

Key Management Personnel ("KMP")

Nature of transactions

Key Management Personnel ("KMP")
Key Management Personnel ("KMP")

Key Management Personnel ("KMP")

Nature of relationship

(a)   Names of related party and nature of relationship



(Rs. In Lakhs)

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Satya Micro Capital

Outstanding Principal balance                                       -                                 1,437.50 
Security Deposit balance                              645.00                                     75.00 
Interest Accured on Security Deposit 6.11                                  0.41                                      
Amount Receivable for BC Portfolio 20.97                               -                                        

Gaurav Gupta -Managing Director from 01.02.2020
Deferred Performance Linked Incentives                                   6.42                                       6.42 

(c) Details of related party transactions with Key Management Personnel (KMP) are as under :

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 For the Year ended 

31st March, 2021 
 For the Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 
Name of the KMP :
Subraya Shankar Bhat -Managing Director upto 31.01.2020 -                                    45.96                                    
Gaurav Gupta -Managing Director from 01.02.2020 52.81                               8.42                                      
Nature of transactions :
Gross Salary including perquisites 52.81                               8.15                                      
Appreciation on deferred PLI -                                    0.27                                      

Rekha Singhal - Chief Financial Officer upto 18.01.2021
Nature of transactions :
Gross Salary including perquisites 14.71                               -                                        

Pranav Desai - Chief Financial Officer from 19.01.2021
Nature of transactions :
Gross Salary including perquisites 8.94                                  -                                        

Key management personnel are those individuals who have the authority and responsibility for planning and exercising power to directly or indirectly control
the activities of the Company or its employees. The Company considers its Managing Director and Cheif Financial Officer to be key management personnel for
the purposes of IND AS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

Name of the related party
Closing balance as on 
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37

Brief of the Scheme

Details of SAR Expense
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 For the Year ended 

31st March, 2021 
 For the Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 
Share based payments to employees -                                   2.60                                     

Movement of Liability / Provision
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 For the Year ended 

31st March, 2021 
 For the Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 
Outstanding at the beginning of the Year                               10.29                                    15.00 
Add: Charged to Statement of P&L -                                                                        2.60 
Less: Liability Paid                                      -                                       (7.31)
Outstanding at the end of the Year                               10.29                                    10.29 

Stock Appriciation Rights (SAR)

The Ananya SAR plan is a ‘performance-based’ plan that entitles the current and future employees who meet a certain eligibility criteria to
the appreciation in value of Ananya shares over the ‘Exercise price’ over a specified period of time. The selection of the employees and
implementation of the plan shall be done by the HR committee with the required approvals from the Board and the Shareholders.
Plan features:-
Vesting date   - The last day of the financial year immediately preceding the date on which the Board approves the SAR.
Base Price        -  The price at which the last equity investment was made in the 2 financial years ending on the vesting date or
                               the Book value on the vesting date, whichever is higher.
Term                   -  7 years from the date of vesting after which the SAR cannot be exercised
Expiry date       -  7 years from the date of vesting
Lock-in period - The period of 3 years from the Vesting date during which time the SAR cannot be exercised
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38 Fair Value Measurements:

a)

(i) Levels 1, 2 and 3

(ii)

b)

Below are the valuation methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair value for the financial instruments which are not recorded and measured at fair value in the company's 
financial statements.

Loans
The fair values of instruments are estimated by determining the price of the instrument taking into consideration the origination date, maturity date, coupon rate, actual or approximation of
frequency of interest payments and incorporating the actual or estimated/proxy yields of identical or similar instruments through the discounting factor.The maturity date for Instruments where
credit risk has increased significantly and credit not impaired are assumed to be post six months from Financial year end. The Fair value for Instruments ,which are credit impaired, is assumed as
carrying value less provision for expected credit loss.The fair value are calculated for disclosure purpose only.

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
The fair values of fixed interest rate instruments are estimated by determining the price of the instrument taking into consideration the origination date, maturity date, coupon rate, actual or
approximation of frequency of interest payments and incorporating the estimated/proxy yields by using current market interest rate being charged for new borrowings through the discounting
factor. while fair value of floating rate instruments is deemed to equal to its carrying value.The fair value are calculated for disclosure purpose only.

Short-term financial assets and liabilities

Mutual Funds are measured based on the published net asset value (NAV) by AMFI and are classified as level 1

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the years.

Accounting classification and fair values

The following table analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date along with Accounting classification of the same, by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurement is categorised. The amounts are based on the values recognised in the statement of financial position.

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments measured at fair value

Mutual Funds

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Measurement of fair values:

Level 1 : Mutual Funds are measured based on the published net asset value (NAV) by AMFI and are included in level 1



Investments

As at 31st March, 2021 (Rs. In Lakhs)

 Amortized Cost/ 
Cost 

 FVTPL  FVTOCI Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash and cash equivalents* 1,584.94                    -                           -                   1,584.94                 -                         
Other Bank Balance* 1,181.37                    -                           -                   1,181.37                 -                         
Loans 25,060.71                  -                           -                   25,060.71              24,248.33       24,248.33             
Investments -                              61.12                      75.00               136.12                    61.12                          75.00               136.12                  
Other Financial assets* 90.47                         -                           -                   90.47                      -                         
Total Financial Assets 27,917.49                  61.12                      75.00               28,053.61              61.12                          -                   24,323.33       24,384.45             

Trade Payables* 53.16                         -                           -                   53.16                      -                         
Lease liability* 167.18                       -                           -                   167.18                    
Debt Securities 3,799.80                    -                           -                   3,799.80                 3,730.81         3,730.81               
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 13,207.46                  -                           -                   13,207.46              13,207.12       13,207.12             
Other financial liabilities* 2,930.77                    -                           -                   2,930.77                 -                         
Total Financial Liabilities 20,158.37                  -                           -                   20,158.37              -                              -                   16,937.93       16,937.93             

As at 31st March, 2020 (Rs. In Lakhs)

 Amortized Cost  FVTPL  FVTOCI Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents* 3,611.78                    -                           -                   3,611.78                 -                              -                   -                   -                         
Other Bank Balance* 1,503.87                    -                           -                   1,503.87                 -                              -                   -                   -                         
Loans 25,302.03                  -                           -                   25,302.03              -                              -                   24,458.68       24,458.68             
Investments -                              56.58                      56.58                      56.58                          -                   -                   56.58                     
Other Financial assets* 7.08                            -                           -                   7.08                        -                              -                   -                   -                         
Total Financial Assets 30,424.76                  56.58                      -                   30,481.34              56.58                          -                   24,458.68       24,515.26             

Trade Payables* 28.72                         -                           -                   28.72                      -                              -                   -                   -                         
Lease liability* 170.86                       -                           -                   170.86                    -                              -                   -                   -                         
Debt Securities* 1,561.09                    -                           -                   1,561.09                 
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 15,818.67                  -                           -                   15,818.67              -                              -                   15,816.70       15,816.70             
Other financial liabilities* 4,132.67                    -                           -                   4,132.67                 -                              -                   -                   -                         
Total Financial Liabilities 21,712.01                  -                           -                   21,712.01              -                              -                   15,816.70       15,816.70             
* Fair Value of Cash & Cash equivalents , other bank Balance. Other financial assets, Trade payables, lease laibility, debt securities and Other financial liabilities approximates the carrying cost.

Particulars
Carrying Value Fair Value

* Fair Value of Cash & Cash equivalents , other bank Balance. Other financial assets, Trade payables, lease laibility and Other financial liabilities approximates the carrying cost.

Particulars Carrying Value Fair Value

The fair value of Investments in preference share approximates the carrying value less impairment while the fair value of Invesment in Equity Shares is considered same as carrying value.

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term nature, the carrying amounts, which are net of impairment, are a reasonable approximation of their fair value. Such
instruments include: cash and bank balances, trade receivables, other receivables, balances other than cash and cash equivalents and trade payables. For debt securites with maturity of less
than one year fair value is considered same as carrying value.
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39 Financial Risk Management:

(A) Credit risk

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Financial Assets
where loss
allowance

measured at
12-month ECL

Financial assets
for which credit

risk has increased
significantly and

credit not 
impaired

Financial assets
for which credit

risk has increased
significantly and
credit impaired

Financial Assets 
where loss allowance 

measured using 
simplified approach/ 

cost

Total as on 31st 
March, 2021

Cash and cash equivalents                       1,584.94                 1,584.94 
Bank Balance other than (a) above                               -                               -                               -                         1,181.37                 1,181.37 
Loans*                 23,274.29                 1,289.63                 1,680.44                              1.04               26,245.40 
Investments                               -                               -                               -                              70.19                       70.19 
Other Financial assets                               -                               -                               -                              90.47                       90.47 
*Loans comprises of outstanding principal, interest accrued but not due and principal and interest overdue.

Risk Management
The company has a well-defined risk management framework to identify, assess and monitor risks and strengthen controls to mitigate risks. The
company has established procedures to periodically place before the Risk Management Committee and Board of Directors, the risk assessment and
minimisation procedures being followed by the company and steps taken by it to mitigate these risks. The Risk Management processes has been
established across the company and are continuously reviewed improved and adapted to the changing risk landscape. 

The company’s Risk Management practices are guided by its internal credit and exposure policies and standard operating procedures that have been
designed to be commensurate with its business of lending in the Retail, Microfinance, Agrifinance and MSME segments, and endeavours to manage
the various risks in the business including Credit risk, Liquidity risk, Market risk, Operational risk and Strategic risks. 

Credit Risk is the risk of loss that may occur from defaults by Borrowers under loan agreements. The company has a comprehensive framework for
monitoring credit quality of its portfolio based on days past due monitoring at period end. Repayment by customers is tracked regularly and required
steps for recovery are taken through follow ups and legal recourse.

Around 85% of the company’s exposure is either to direct retail borrowers or through other financial intermediaries operating in the Microfinance
industry, that lend to women from low-income households. The remaining 15% of its exposure is almost equally divided into two segments – (i)
Agrifinance, where the company supports smallholder farmer collectives (FPO) and Agri-SMEs working with smallholder farmer collectives and (ii)
Early-stage MSMEs that work in the impact space including renewable energy, waste management, affordable healthcare and livelihoods.

Thus, the company is directly and indirectly exposed to borrowers typically having limited sources of income, savings and credit histories and the
loans are typically provided free of collateral. The borrowers generally do not have a high level of financial resilience and as a result they can be
adversely affected by declining economic conditions and natural calamities. 

The company also tries to lower the credit risk by ensuring the portfolio is well-diversified both geographically and client-wise. It has placed various
portfolio concentration limits and ensures it adheres to the caps.
The company reviews the credit quality of its loans based on the ageing of the loan at the period end and takes the same into consideration while
calculating its ECL allowances. 

The company has, based on current available information and based on the policy approved by the Board of Directors, determined the provision for
impairment of financial assets. The company has also assessed the possible impact of COVID-19 pandemic on each borrower and significant increase
in credit risk based on delayed payments metrics observed along with an estimation of potential stress on probability of defaults and loss given
default. Accordingly, the company has made provision for additional impairment loss allowance of Rs.265.34 lakh due to COVID-19 pandemic on the
loan portfolio. 

The Company reviews the credit quality of its loans based on the ageing of the loan at the period end. Since the company is into lending business to
varied category of corporates and retail borrowers, there is no significant credit risk of any individual customer that may impact company adversely,
and hence the Company has calculated its ECL allowances on a collective basis.

Credit quality analysis 
The following tables sets out information about the credit quality of financial assets measured at amortised cost. Unless specifically indicated, for
financial assets, the amounts in the table represent gross carrying amounts.



(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Financial Assets
where loss
allowance

measured at
12-month ECL

Financial assets
for which credit

risk has increased
significantly and

credit not 
impaired

Financial assets
for which credit

risk has increased
significantly and
credit impaired

Financial Assets 
where loss allowance 

measured using 
simplified approach/ 

cost

Total as on 31st 
March, 2020

Cash and cash equivalents                               -                               -                               -                         3,611.78                 3,611.78 
Bank Balance other than (a) above                               -                               -                               -                         1,503.87                 1,503.87 
Loans*                 23,957.77                    488.74                 2,183.82                              1.33               26,631.67 
Investments                               -                               -                               -                              70.19                       70.19 
Other Financial assets                               -                               -                               -                                7.08                         7.08 

*Loans comprises of outstanding principal, interest accrued but not due and principal and interest overdue.

Financial assets measured using simplified approach

(B) Collateral held

(C)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Financial Assets
where loss
allowance

measured at
12-month ECL

Financial assets
for which credit

risk has increased
significantly and

credit not 
impaired

Financial assets
for which credit

risk has increased
significantly and
credit impaired

Total

Gross Balance as at 1st April, 2019 24,076.03                745.54                   307.05                   25,128.62                    
Expected Credit Loss 169.45                     27.08                      107.67                   304.20                         
Carrying amount as at 1st April, 2019 
(net of impairment provision) 23,906.58                718.46                   199.38                   24,824.42                   

Gross Balance as at 31st March, 2020 23,957.77                488.74                   2,183.82                26,630.33                    
Expected Credit Loss 276.26                     17.62                      843.33                   1,137.21                      
Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2020 
(net of impairment provision) 23,681.51                471.12                   1,340.49                25,493.12                   

Gross Balance as at 31st March, 2021 23,274.29                1,289.63                1,680.44                26,244.36                    
Expected Credit Loss 228.44                     57.52                      781.40                   1,067.37                      
Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2021 
(net of impairment provision) 23,045.85                1,232.11                899.03                   25,176.99                   

Reconciliation of Gross Exposure
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Financial Assets
where loss
allowance

measured at
12-month ECL

Financial assets
for which credit

risk has increased
significantly and

credit not 
impaired

Financial assets
for which credit

risk has increased
significantly and
credit impaired

Total

Gross carrying amount balance 
as at 1st April, 2019 24,076.03               745.54                   307.05                   25,128.62                   
- New loans disbursed during the year 17,815.17               351.25                   1,373.49                19,539.91                   

The Company holds collateral and other credit enhancements against certain of its credit exposures. The loans are collateralized against security
deposits, equitable mortgage of property, hypothecation of assets, personal guarantees, corporate guarantees etc

Impairment Loss

The following table shows reconcilation from opening balance to closing balance of the loan loss allowances 

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, Investments,
and other financial assets. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.



- Loans closed/written off during the year (5,560.46)                (167.97)                  (290.49)                  (6,018.92)                    
- Movement in EAD without change in
asset staging (10,184.06)              -                         (16.56)                    (10,200.62)                  
- Movement in EAD due to change in
asset staging (2,188.91)                (440.08)                  810.33                   (1,818.66)                    
Gross carrying amount balance 
as at 31st March, 2020 23,957.77               488.74                   2,183.82               26,630.33                   
- New loans disbursed during the year 18,618.69               838.81                   258.50                   19,716.00                   

- Loans closed/written off during the year (10,385.70)              (234.16)                  (1,343.43)              (11,963.29)                  
- Movement in EAD without change in
asset staging (6,726.77)                -                         (173.34)                  (6,900.10)                    
- Movement in EAD due to change in
asset staging (2,189.70)                196.23                   754.89                   (1,238.58)                    
Gross carrying amount balance 
as at 31st March, 2021 23,274.29               1,289.63               1,680.44               26,244.36                   

Reconciliation of ECL Balance
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Financial Assets
where loss
allowance

measured at
12-month ECL

Financial assets
for which credit

risk has increased
significantly and

credit not 
impaired

Financial assets
for which credit

risk has increased
significantly and
credit impaired

Total

ECL Allowance as at 1st April, 2019 169.45                    27.08                     107.67                   304.20                        
- New loans disbursed during the year 217.82                     16.64                     528.38                   762.84                        
- Loans closed/written off during the year (89.62)                      (15.06)                    (100.98)                  (205.66)                       
- Movement in position without change in
asset staging 12.64                       -                         (6.70)                      5.94                             
- Movement in position due to change in
asset staging (34.03)                      (11.04)                    314.96                   269.89                        
ECL Allowance as at 31st March, 2020 276.26                    17.62                     843.33                   1,137.21                     
- New loans disbursed during the year 153.04                     7.49                       119.78                   280.31                        
- Loans closed/written off during the year (130.81)                   (11.50)                    (589.64)                  (731.95)                       
- Movement in position without change in
asset staging (25.53)                      -                         45.76                     20.23                           
- Movement in position due to change in
asset staging (44.52)                      43.91                     362.17                   361.56                        
ECL Allowance as at 31st March, 2021 228.44                    57.52                     781.40                   1,067.36                     

(D) Write off

(E) Modified financial instruments

(Rs. In Lakhs)
FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

920.32 620.90
843.26 586.94

2.87                       (2.34)                      

Particulars
Value of modified assets at the time of modification
Value of modified assets outstanding at end of the year
Modification loss

The above modification is in accordance with the provisions defined in the Master Direction Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important 
Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 Circular No DNBR.PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated
September 01, 2016 (updated as on February 17, 2020)

For financial assets, such as a loan to a customer, when the term and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that the modification does not
result in cash flows that are substantially different (thereby not resulting into derecognisation), the Company had disclosed modification gain/loss
based on discounted cash flows.

Contractual amount outstanding on financial assets that were written off (net of recovery) during the reporting period is Rs. 
1,986.28 lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 329.82 Lakhs).
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(F) Credit risk grading of loans

Credit grading details (Rs. In Lakhs)

(G) Concentration of credit risk

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety

There is no transfer of Financial assets resultiing into derecognization of Financial asset in current and previous year.

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region,
or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in
economic, political or other conditions.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on spreading its
lending portfolio across various products/states/customer base with a cap on maximum limit of exposure for an individual/Group.
Accordingly, the Company does not have concentration risk

31st March, 2021 23,274.29                           1,289.63                               1,680.44                           26,244.36                                      
31st March, 2020 23,957.77                           488.74                                  2,183.82                           26,630.33                                      

Credit Risk Grading is an important tool for credit risk management as it helps in understanding and evaluating risks for different credit
transactions.
The Company has established overall credit limits at the level of individual borrowers and counterparties, and also at the group levels of the
company. It manages and controls credit risk by confining the amount of risk it is willing to accept for company counterparties, for
geographical concentrations, and by closely monitoring such exposures.

Company has a Credit Risk Policy which is Board approved and shared with all credit approving authorities. All customers will be evaluated on
a set of pre-defined parameters as detailed below and accordingly assessed for the following
risk categories:
1. Low Risk
2. Medium Risk
3. High Risk – This category of customers are not actively sourced by the company. Any customer, assessed as High Risk, can be funded by the
company basis exceptional comfort and availability of justifying mitigants. The extent and nature of due diligence is the highest for this
category.

The assessment of a customer being classified into high, medium or low is based on various parameters at the time of on-boarding which are
captured in the Credit Processing Note by the credit department and validated by the relevant approving authority. The parameters are as
follows:
1. Customer Profile
2. Financial health
3. Business vintage
4. Credit history
5. Industry feedback
6. Other qualitative/ quantitative factors as mentioned in the policy

Company’s Risk Management practices are guided by its internal credit and exposure policies and standard operating procedures that lays
down steps to manage the various risks in the business including Credit risk.

As of 31-Mar-2021, the Credit risk of the company increased owing to the "second Wave" of COVID pandemic and the consequential
territorial lockdowns. As per the company’s internal assessment, the impact of COVID is likely to be higher on some of its borrowing clients.
However, given that the company is well capitalized , it has the ability to absorb some credit losses.

Additionally, the Company evaluates risk based on staging as defined in Ind AS, details of which are mentioned below.

Period Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total EAD
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(H) Market risk

- a parallel shift of 50-basis points of the interest rate yield curves in major currencies.
-

The following assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

(i) Interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate risk
(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Floating Rate Borrowings
Financial Liabilities 3,863.61                       3,074.48                         

Interest rate sensitivity

Impact on Profit / (loss) after tax (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 
Increase in 50 basis points                             (13.94)                               (11.10)
Decrease in 50 basis points                              13.94                                11.10 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company seeks to mitigate such risk by maintaining an adequate proportion of
floating and fixed interest rate borrowings. Summary of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to
Interest Rate Risk has been provided below:

All loans disbusred by the Company are on fixed rate of interest .

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of change in interest rates. The
following table demonstrates the sensitivity of floating rate financial instruments to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates. The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 50 basis points interest rate across all yield curves.
This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk
exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt
outstanding during the period.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risks: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk includes borrowings, deposits, investments and loans.

Within the various methodologies to analyze and manage risk, Company has implemented a system based on “sensitivity
analysis” on symmetric basis. This tool enables the risk managers to identify the risk position of the entities. Sensitivity analysis
provides an approximate quantification of the exposure in the event that certain specified parameters were to be met under a
specific set of assumptions. The risk estimates provided here assume:

10% increase / decrease in NAV of all Mutual Funds traded in an active market, which are classified as financial asset
measured at FVTPL.

The potential economic impact, due to these assumptions, is based on the occurrence of adverse / inverse market conditions
and reflects estimated changes resulting from the sensitivity analysis. Actual results that are included in the Statement of profit
and loss may differ materially from these estimates due to actual developments in the global financial markets.

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement
obligations and provisions.

The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.
This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.
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(I) Liquidity risk

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars  Carrying amount
1 day to 30/31 

day (one month)
 Over one month to 

2 months 
 Over 2 months to 3 

months 
Over 3 months upto 
6 months

Over 6 months upto 
1year

Over 1 year upto 3 
years

Over 3 years upto 5 
years

Over 5 years

As at March 31, 2021
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 53.16                          7.81                        -                              45.35                          -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              
Lease Liability 167.18                        0.43                        0.43                            0.44                            1.34                            2.93                            18.19                          30.45                          112.97                        
Debt Securities 3,799.80                     -                          187.50                        -                              -                              -                              3,612.30                     -                              -                              
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 13,207.46                  753.22                    706.31                        718.19                        2,084.44                     4,116.16                     4,829.15                     -                              -                              
Other financial liabilities 2,930.77                     246.20                    313.58                        84.93                          382.48                        787.55                        1,094.58                     21.45                          
Total 20,158.37                  1,007.66                1,207.82                     848.91                        2,468.26                     4,906.64                     9,554.22                     51.90                          112.97                        
As at March 31, 2020
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 28.72                          -                          3.61                            -                              25.12                          -                              -                              
Lease Liability 170.86                        0.28                        0.28                            0.29                            0.88                            1.95                            13.36                          23.85                          129.98                        
Debt Securities 1,561.09                     -                          255.54                        -                              -                              1,305.55                     -                              -                              -                              
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 15,818.67                  676.00                    252.00                        992.00                        2,764.00                     4,638.00                     6,456.00                     40.67                          -                              
Other financial liabilities 4,132.67                     -                          -                              423.87                        602.95                        1,232.66                     1,873.20                     -                              -                              
Total 21,712.01                  676.28                    511.43                        1,416.16                     3,392.95                     7,178.16                     8,342.56                     64.52                          129.98                        

(i) Financing arrangements
The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Bank Overdraft -                                  600.00                       

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result from an
inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value. The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position
and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing from both banks and financial institutions at an optimised cost. The Company has the discretion over disbursement of any undrawn portion of
sanctioned loans to its borrower i.e. borrowers don’t have an unconditional drawdown right over undrawn portion of the sanctioned loan and hence company is not expecting any liquidity risk in terms of undrawn sanctioned limits.

The table below analyses non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed under the ageing 
buckets are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and includes contractual interest payments.

Particulars

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been breaches in financial covenants of four lenders namely, Bandhan Bank, Caspian Impact Investments Pvt Ltd, ResponsAbility India Business
Advisors Pvt. Ltd and Maanaveeya Development and Finance limited having total exposure of Rs. 3,470 lakhs in the company but Company has received relaxation from the
said lenders except from Maanaveeya Development and Finance Limited and Bandhan Bank having an exposure of Rs. 1,407 lakhs. Maanaveeya Development and Finance
Limited is reviewing the relaxation request and is expected to take some more time as the state in which the lender is operating is under lockdown. Bandhan Bank loan is
getting completed in September 2021.There seems to be no implication of liability being called upon or any penalty to be levied. Management expects that the Company will
be able to meet all contractual obligations from borrowings on a timely basis going forward.
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Foreign currency risk

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Investments 61.12                       56.58                     

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
 Year ended 31st 

March, 2020 

Increase by 10%                           4.41                        4.08 
Decrease by 10%                         (4.41)                       (4.08)

Impact on Profit / (loss) after tax

(J)
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is mainly transacting in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the
functional currency of the company. Consequently, the Company is not exposed to any foreign exchange
risk.

(K) Other Price Risk
The Entity is exposed to price risks arising from its investments which are held for trading purposes. The
sensitivity analysis have been determined based on the exposure to price risks for Investments in Mutual
Funds at the end of the reporting period.

 The company's exposure to asset having price risk is as under.

Particulars
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40 Capital management:

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020

Company's strategy is to effectively determine, raise and deploy capital so as to create value for its shareholders. It is achieved by maintaining a balance
mix of Equity and Debt as may be appropriate. The Company determines the amount of funds required on the basis of operations, capital expenditure
and business plans. The Capital structure is monitored on the basis of capital adequacy ratio and maturity profile of overall debt portfolio of the
company. ( Please refer Note 44 (A) and Note 39(I) )

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes paid-up equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong capital base so as to
maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, as
well as level of dividends to equity share holders.
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41 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (Rs. In Lakhs)

 Particulars 
 Within 12 Months  After 12 Months  Total  Within 12 Months  After 12 Months  Total 

ASSETS
[1] Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 1,584.94                  1,584.94                  3,611.78                 -                          3,611.78                 
(b) Bank Balance other than (a) above 511.87                     669.50                     1,181.37                  805.37                    698.50                    1,503.87                 
(c) Loans 18,491.76                6,568.95                  25,060.71                17,571.12               7,730.91                 25,302.03               
(d) Investments 61.12                       75.00                       136.12                     56.58                      -                          56.58                      
(e) Other Financial assets 88.94                       1.53                          90.47                       5.91                        1.17                        7.08                        

20,738.63                7,314.98                  28,053.61                22,050.76               8,430.58                 30,481.34               
[2] Non-financial Assets
(a) Current tax assets (Net) -                           763.66                     763.66                     -                          1,017.85                 1,017.85                 
(b) Deferred tax Assets (Net) -                           485.59                     485.59                     -                          522.34                    522.34                    
(c) Property, Plant and Equipment -                           72.19                       72.19                       -                          14.98                      14.98                      
(d) Intangible assets under development -                           0.81                          0.81                          -                          26.72                      26.72                      
(e) Other Intangible assets -                           24.00                       24.00                       -                          2.57                        2.57                        
(f) Right of Use Asset -                           159.39                     159.39                     -                          177.26                    177.26                    
(g) Other non-financial assets 3.58                          -                           3.58                          40.92                      -                          40.92                      

3.58                         1,505.64                  1,509.22                  40.92                      1,761.72                 1,802.64                 

Total Assets 20,742.21                8,820.62                  29,562.83                22,091.68               10,192.30               32,283.98               

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES

[1] Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables

Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises -                           -                          -                          -                          
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises 53.16                       53.16                       28.72                      -                          28.72                      

(II) Other Payables -                          
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises -                           -                          -                          -                          
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises -                           -                          -                          -                          

(b) Finance Lease Obligation 5.57                          161.61                     167.18                     3.68                        167.18                    170.86                    
(c) Debt Securities 187.50                     3,612.30                  3,799.80                  1,561.09                 -                          1,561.09                 
(d) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 8,378.31                  4,829.15                  13,207.46                9,322.00                 6,496.67                 15,818.67               
(e) Subordinated Liabilities -                           -                          -                          -                          
(f) Other financial liabilities 1,814.74                  1,116.03                  2,930.77                  2,259.48                 1,873.19                 4,132.67                 

10,439.28                9,719.09                  20,158.37                13,174.96               8,537.04                 21,712.01               

[2] Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Provisions 6.29                          66.95                       73.24                       4.27                        48.71                      52.98                      
(b) Other non-financial liabilities 37.43                       -                           37.43                       43.41                      -                          43.41                      

43.72                       66.95                       110.67                     47.68                      48.71                      96.39                      

[3] EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital -                           6,602.92                  6,602.92                  -                          6,602.92                 6,602.92                 
(b) Other Equity 2,690.87                  2,690.87                  -                          3,872.66                 3,872.66                 

Total Equity -                           9,293.79                  9,293.79                  -                          10,475.58               10,475.58               

Total Liabilities and Equity 10,483.00                19,079.83                29,562.83                13,222.64               19,061.34               32,283.98               

As at31st March, 2021 As at31st March, 2020
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42 Break up of loan portfolio 
(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended 

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
26,548.81                    25,110.31                        
22,815.42                    29,869.30                        

DA Pool Purchased (Refer Note below) 106.00                          460.59                             
49,470.23                    55,440.20                        

Loans assigned during the Year (Refer Note below) -                                 -                                    
23,409.30                    28,891.39                        

-                                 -                                    
23,409.30                    28,891.39                        

26,060.93                    26,548.81                        
(117.39)                        (191.90)                           

25,943.54                    26,356.91                        
82.69                            82.69                                

26,026.23                    26,439.60                        

Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by NBFCs: (Rs. In Lakhs)
2020-21 2019-20

                                   -                                          -   
                                   -                                          -   
                                   -                                          -   
                                   -                                          -   
                                   -                                          -   

Purchase of Portfolio
Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by NBFCs: (Rs. In Lakhs)

2020-21 2019-20
1                                         2 

106.00                                                       460.59 
106.00                                                       460.59 

-                                                                        -   
3.21                                   0.01 

43 Retirement Benefits

a) Employee benefit plans

Asset volatility :

Change in bond yields :

Inflation risk :

Life expectancy :

Asset under Management

Loan Portfolio

Opening Loan outstanding
Loans disbursed during the Year

A

Loans recovered during the year on owned portfolio
Loan portfolio restructured into investments 
B

Loans outstanding at the end of the year (A-B)
Unamortized Transaction Cost
Loans outstanding
Assigned Portfolio

1 No. of accounts
2 Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold
3 Aggregate consideration
4 Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
5 Aggregate gain / loss over net book value

1 No. of Transactions
2 Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts Purchased

The present value of defined benefit plan obligation is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants,
both during and after the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

3 Aggregate consideration
4 Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
5 Aggregate gain / loss over net book value

The company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to fifteen days salary last drawn for
each completed year of service in line with the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The same is payable at the time of separation from the
Company or retirement, whichever is earlier.

Through its defined benefit plans the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with references to government bond yields; if plan assets underperform
compared to this yield, this will create or increase a deficit. The defined benefit plans may hold equity type assets, which may carry
volatility and associated risk.

A decrease in government bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this is expected to be partially offset by an increase in the
value of the plan’s investment in debt instruments.

The present value of some of the defined benefit plan obligations are calculated with reference to the future salaries of plan participants.
As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability. The post retirement medical benefit obligation is
sensitive to medical inflation and accordingly, an increase in medical inflation rate would increase the plan’s liability.



i) Movement in present values of defined benefit obligation (Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

44.24                            23.03                                
13.52                            11.81                                

3.01                               1.57                                  
-                                 11.59                                

(7.40)                            (2.95)                                
-                                (0.81)                                

53.37                            44.24                                

ii) Movement in fair value of plan assets (Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

21.48                            21.14                                
2.22                               1.60                                  

(0.89)                            (0.45)                                
22.44                            -                                    

-                                (0.81)                                
45.25                            21.48                                

iii) Amount recognised in Balance Sheet :
(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

53.37                            44.24                                
45.25                            21.48                                

                               8.12                                 22.76 
                               0.89                                   8.64 
                             (0.89)                                 (0.45)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

13.52                            11.81                                
3.01                               1.57                                  

(2.22)                            (1.60)                                
                            14.31                                 11.78 

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

(7.40)                            0.45                                  
0.89                               8.64                                  

(6.51)                                                              9.09 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
53.37                            44.24                                
45.25                            21.48                                

8.12                               22.76                                

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Discount Rate 6.80% 6.80%
Expected return on plan assets 6.80% 6.80%
Future salary increase 10.00% 10.00%
Retirement Age 60 Yrs 60 Yrs
Mortality Rate Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality ( 2012-14) 
ultimate

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality ( 2012-14) 

ultimate
Withdrawal rate 10% upto 5 duration 

and 1% therafter
10% at younger ages 
and 1% at older ages 

according to graduated 
scale

Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year

v) Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the year

vi) Asset / (liability) recognised in balance sheet

vii) Principal actuarial assumptions

Particulars

Actual Returns on Plan Assets excluding Interest Income
Actuarial Changes Arising from Changes in Financial Assumptions

Particulars

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial losses (gains) arising from change in financial assumptions

Benefits paid
Actuarial losses (gains) arising from experience adjustments

The following tables set out the status of the gratuity plan as required under Ind AS 19.

Particulars

Particulars

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial gains/(losses)
Contributions paid
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Particulars

Defined benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 

Experience. Adjustment On Plan Liabilities
Experience Adjustment on Plan Assets

Deficit in the plan

Particulars

Current service cost

iv) Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Interest on obligation
Expected return on plan assets
Total included in employee benefits expense

Particulars

Present value of obligation 

Closing amount recognised in OCI

Fair value of plan assets 
Liability/(Asset) recognised in balance sheet



viii) Funding Arrangement and Policy

ix) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligations (Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)                                3.82                                   3.00 
Year 2                                4.61                                   3.87 
Year 3                                4.08                                   3.42 
Year 4                                3.61                                   3.03 
Year 5                                4.58                                   2.68 
more than 5 and upto 10 years                                7.92                                 14.82 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Increase/decrease on present value of defined benefits obligation
i) 1% increase in discount rate 48.95 40.69                                
ii) 1% decrease in discount rate 58.46 48.31                                
iii) 1% increase in salary escalation rate 58.25 48.15                                
iv) 1% decrease in salary escalation rate 49.04 40.76                                
v) 1% increase in withdrawal rate 52.48 43.55                                
vi) 1% decrease in withdrawal rate 54.37 45.02                                

xi) Contribution for Next 12 Months (Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
                               5.00                                   5.00 

xi) Sensitivity Analysis Method

xii) Asset information:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Category of Assets As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Insurer managed funds 100.00% 100.00%

b) Defined contribution plan (Rs. In Lakhs)

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss towards
For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

i)  Provident fund 27.93                                 21.81 
ii)  Employee state insurance 0.23                                   0.29 
Total 28.16 22.10

Above sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation, and assuming there are no
other changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no changes from the previous periods in the methods and
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis.

x) Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below:

Projection Risks:

Investment Risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to the
market yields on government bonds denominated in Indian Rupees. If the actual return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a
plan deficit.

Particulars

Particulars

Contribution for Next 12 Months

Particulars

Interest Risk - A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be partially offset by an increase in
the return on the plan’s debt investments.
Longevity Risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of
plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the
plan's liability.
Salary Risk -The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salariesof plan participants. As
such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The money contributed by the Group to the fund to finance the liabilities of the plan has to be invested. The trustees of the plan are
required to invest the funds as per the prescribed pattern of investments laid out in the Income Tax Rules for such approved schemes.
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44

(A)     Capital Adequacy Ratio
(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

CRAR (%) 33.93% 39.54%
CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 33.07% 35.70%
CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 0.86% 1.04%
Amount of subordinate debt raised as tier- II capital* -                                 - 
Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments                                     -                                       -   

(B)    Disclosure of Investments
(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Value of Investments
Gross value of Investments* 206.31 126.77 
(a)  In India 206.31 126.77 
(b)  Outside India                                     -                                       -   

Provision for depreciation/diminution 70.19 70.19 
(a) In India 70.19 70.19 
(b) Outside India                                     -                                       -   

Net value of investments 136.12 56.58 
(a) In India 136.12 56.58 
(b) Outside India - - 
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on Investments
Opening Balance 70.19 70.19 
Add: Provision made during the year - - 
Less : Write -off / write-back of excess provisions during the year - - 
Closing balance 70.19 70.19 

(C)   Derivatives:
(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

The notional principal of Forward/swap agreements - - 
Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their
obligation under the agreements

 -  - 

Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering into swaps  -  - 
Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps  -  - 
The fair value of swap book  -  - 

(b)    Exchange traded Interest Rate “IR” derivatives (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken
- Forward Rate agreements - - 
Total                                     -                                       -   
Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding
- Forward Rate agreements -  - 
Total - - 
Notional  principal  amount  of  exchange  traded  IR  derivatives  outstanding and not  “highly 
effective”

 -  - 

Mark to market value of exchange traded IR derivative outstanding and not highly effective -  - 

The Company does not sale loans through securitisation and direct assignment.

Disclosure as required under annex XII- RBI Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important non-deposit taking 
company and deposit taking company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated september 01, 2016 as may be amended from time to time:*

(a)    Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap

(D)   Disclosures pertaining to securitisation transactions
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As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

- - 

- - 

 -  - 
 -  - 

- - 
- - 
- - 

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

75.00 - 

- - 

- - 

- - 

- - 

- - 

- - 
- - 

75.00 - 

(G) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL)/Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded

(H) Unsecured advances
Total loans and advances includes Rs. 13,754.88 Lakhs which are unsecured advances (Previous year Rs. 1.33 Lakhs)

(I) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The company has not obtained any registration from any other financial sector regular during the current and previous year.

(J) Details of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators
No penalties have been levied by the Reserve Bank of India or any other Regulators during the current and previous year

(K)   Details of Credit Ratings:

i)     Ratings assigned by Credit rating agencies:

Amount Rating assigned Amount Rating assigned
Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited Non Convertible Debenture 2,500 BWR BBB - -
Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited Non Convertible Debenture 1,500 BWR BBB 1,500 BWR BBB/Stable
Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited Long Term Bank Facilities 24,400 BWR BBB 24,400 BWR BBB/Stable
Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited Cash Credit 600 BWR BBB 600 BWR BBB/Stable

Rating Agency Product

Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited Non Convertible Debenture

Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited Long Term Bank Facilities

Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited Cash Credit

The Company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the current year. Since the company was Non-Systematically Important 
NBFC in the previous year, the SGL/GBL norms were not applicable.

As at March 31, 2020

ii)     Details of migration of credit ratings during the year:

Rating assigned

BWR BBB/Credit watch with Negative 
Implication

Rating Agency Product As at March 31, 2021

BWR BBB/Credit watch with Negative 
Implication
BWR BBB/Credit watch with Negative 
Implication

Migration in ratings during the year

Change in Outlook from Stable to Negative

Change in Outlook from Stable to Negative

Change in Outlook from Stable to Negative

(iv)   Advances  for  any  other  purposes  to  the  extent  secured  by  the  collateral security  of  
shares  or  convertible  bonds  or  convertible  debentures  or  unit or equity-oriented mutual funds 
i.e. where the primary security other than shares/ convertible bonds / convertible debentures / 
units of equity-oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances;

(F)  Exposure to Capital Market:

Particulars

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector (A+B)
b)     Indirect Exposure (B)

(iii)    Advances  for  any  other  purpose  where  shares  or  convertible  bonds  or convertibles 
debentures or units of equity-oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;

(ii)    Advances against shares/bonds/debentures or other securities or on clean basis  to  individuals  
for  investments  in  shares  (including  IPOs/  ESOPs), convertible  bonds,  convertible  debentures,  
and  unit  of  equity-oriented mutual funds;

(i)     Direct   investment   in   equity   shares,   convertibles   bonds,   convertible debentures and 
unit of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate 
debt;

Total Exposure to Capital Market
(viii)  All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)
(vii)   Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/issues;

(vi)   Loan  sanctioned  to  corporates  against  the  security  of  shares/bonds/ debentures  or  other  
securities  or  on  clean  basis  for  meeting  promoter's contribution  to  the  equity  of  new  
companies  in  anticipation  of  raising resources;

(v)    Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of 
stockbroker and market makers;

Disclosure as required under annex XII- RBI Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important non-deposit taking 
company and deposit taking company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated september 01, 2016 as may be amended from time to time:

(E)   Exposure to Real Estate Sector

a)     Direct Exposure
(i)     Residential Mortgages

Total Direct Exposure (A)
(b)  Commercial real estate
(a)  Residential

(iii)   Investments in Mortgage back securities (MBS) and other securitised
exposure-

(ii)    Commercial Real Estate

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or
will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented.

Particulars

Lending     secured  by  mortgages  on  commercial  real  estate  (office buildings, retail space, multi-
purpose commercial premises, multi-family residentail  building,  multi  tenanted  commercial  
premises.  industrial  or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, 
etc.) Exposure would also include non-fund based limits.
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a.      Draw down from reserves.
b.      Overseas assets (for those with joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad).
c.      Off- Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored.
d.      Financing of parent company products.
e.      Postponement of revenue recognition.

Name of the Director 2020-21 2019-2020
Ms. Jayshree Vyas 1.50 2.48
Mr. Siddharth Sinha 2.40 2.10
Mr. Arvind Agrawal 1.88 1.80
Mr. Sanjay Gandhi 2.18 2.25
Mr. Brij Mohan 1.88 1.50
Ms. Sutapa Banerjee 0.15 1.58
Ms. Tara Nair 1.43 0.00
Ms. Vijayalakshmi Das 0.00 0.75
Total 11.42 12.46

(N) Details of Provisions and Contingencies

Particulars                                                                                                  
                        

2020-21 2019-20

Provision for depreciation on investment 70.19 70.19 
Provision towards non performing advances 838.92 860.95 
Other Provision and Contingencies:
Bad debts written off/(back) 1,986.28 329.82 
Provision for Contingencies/Other financial assets
Provision for Standard Assets 228.44 276.26 
Total 3,123.83 1,537.22 
Provision made towards Income Tax 40.03 27.35 

(O)  Details of concentration of advances, exposures & NPA:

a)     Concentration of Advances

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 8,839.19                      17,401.43 
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total 
advances

34.07% 66.02%

b)     Concentration of Exposures

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 8,876.71                      17,422.63 
Percentage of exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 
to total exposure

33.97% 65.90%

Note: Exposure includes amount outstanding including principal and interest overdue.

c)     Concentration of NPAs

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Total exposure to top four NPA accounts 1,138.07 1,139.39

d)     Details of sectorwise NPA:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Agriculture & allied activities 9.68% 36.15%
MSME 0.00% 16.12%
Corporate borrowers 13.88% 3.05%
Services 0.00% 0.00%
Unsecured personal loans 0.00% 0.00%
Auto Loans 0.00% 0.00%
Other loans* 4.04% 16.16%
*Other loans include all loans that cannot be classified under any of the other sectors.

(P) Disclosure of Complaints:

Particulars 2020-21 2019-2020
i.   Number of complaints pending at the beginning of year -  - 
ii.  Number of complaints received during the year -  - 
iii. Number of complaints redressed during the year -  - 
iv. Number of complaints pending at the end of the year -  - 

(M)  Remuneration paid to Non Executive Directors:

Sector % of NPAs to total advances in that sector

Disclosure as required under annex XII- RBI Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important non-deposit 
taking company and deposit taking company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated september 01, 2016 as may be amended from time 
to time:

(L)   Considering the nature of the business of the entity and transactions entered during the year ended March 
31, 2021 & March 31, 2020 following are having Nil disclosure:
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(Q) Asset Classification

(a) Asset Classification and provision thereof (Rs. In Lakhs)

Loan Portfolio Provision Loan Portfolio Provision Loan Portfolio Provision 
Standard Assets             24,563.90                    285.96 26,039.35            837.38                 1,38,99,35,379            34,74,838                   
Sub standard 
Assets*

              1,421.73                    658.12 590.98                  299.83                 10,15,219                   

Doubtful Assets                  258.71                    123.29 -                        -                       -                                 -                               
Loss Assets                           -                               -   -                        -                       -                                 -                               
Total 26,244.34           1,067.37               26,630.33            1,137.21             

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Standard asset 
provision

Non-performing 
asset provision

Total
Standard asset 

provision
Non-performing asset 

provision
Total

Opening balance                  276.26                    860.95                1,137.21 169.45                 134.75                          304.20                         
Additions                            -   106.81                 726.20                          833.01                         
Reduction 47.82                   22.03                                          69.85 -                       -                                 -                               
Closing balance                  228.44                    838.92                1,067.36 276.26                 860.95                          1,137.21                     

 
(c) Provision for diminution in the fair value of restructured advances
During the year, the Company has made a provision (net) amounting to Rs.46.17 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.7.92 lakhs) for diminution in the fair
value of restructured advances in accordance with the Direction No. : DOR.No.BP.BC/4/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 06, 2020 on Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector - Restructuring of Advances.

* Includes provision for diminution in value of restructured advances of Rs. 46.17 lakhs for FY 2020-21 and Rs. 7.92 lakhs for FY 2019-20 as 
mentioned in note C below.

(b) The movement in provision for the year ended 31st March 2021 and 31st March 2020

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

The movement in Provision has been shown on net basis.

Asset classification

As at As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 1st April 2018
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(d) Disclosure of Restructured Accounts

Details of 2020-21
(Rs. In Lakhs)

No. of Borrowers -           -           -           -           -           -           3.00                     -           -           3.00                     -            3.00                     -            -            3.00                     
Amount Outstanding -           -           -           -           -           -           159.76                -           -           159.76                -            159.76                -            -            159.76                

Provision Thereon -           -           -           -           -           -           52.85                  -           -           52.85                  -            52.85                  -            -            52.85                  
No. of Borrowers -           -           -           -           -                    2.00                          -   -           -           2.00                     2.00          -                       -            -            2.00                     
Amount Outstanding -           -           -           -           -                880.04                          -   -           -           880.04                880.04     -                       -            -            880.04                
Provision Thereon -           -           -           -           -                  32.97                          -   -           -           32.97                  32.97        -                       -            -            32.97                  
No. of Borrowers -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       
Amount Outstanding -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       
Provision Thereon -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       

No. of Borrowers -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       

Amount Outstanding -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       

Provision Thereon -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       
No. of Borrowers -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       
Amount Outstanding -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       
Provision Thereon -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       
No. of Borrowers -           -           -           -           -           -           3.00                     -           -           3.00                     -            3.00                     -            -            3.00                     
Amount Outstanding -           -           -           -           -           -           159.76                -           -           159.76                -            159.76                -            -            159.76                
Provision Thereon -           -           -           -           -           -           52.85                  -           -           52.85                  -            52.85                  -            -            52.85                  
No. of Borrowers -           -           -           -           -           2.00         -                       -           -           2.00                     2.00          -                       -            -            2.00                     

Amount Outstanding -           -           -           -           -           880.04     -                       -           -           880.04                880.04     -                       -            -            880.04                

Provision Thereon -           -           -           -           -           32.97       -                       -           -           32.97                  32.97        -                       -            -            32.97                  

7
Restructured Accounts as on 31st 
March of the FY (Closing Figures)*

* Excluding the Figures of standard restructured advances which do not attract higher provisioning on risk weight

4

Restructured Standard Advances 
which ceases to attract higher 
provisioning  and / or additional 
risk weight at the end of the FY 
and hence need not be shown as 
restructured standard advances at 
the beginning of the next FY.

5 Downgradations of restructured 
accounts during the FY

6 Write offs of restructured accounts 
during the FY 

1
Restructured Accounts as on 1st 
April 2020 (opening Figures)*

2
Fresh Restructuring during the year

3
Upgradations to restructured 
standard category during the 
financial year

Sr. No.
Type of Restructuring

Under CDR Mechanism / Under SME Debt 
Restructuring

Others

Loss TotalLoss TotalDetails Standard

Total

Asset Classification
Standard

Sub-
Standard Doubtful Sub-Standard Doubtful Standard Sub-Standard Doubtful Loss Total
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Details of 2019-20
(Rs. in lakhs)

No. of Borrowers -           -           -           -           -           -           1.00                     -           -           1.00                     -            1.00                     -            -            1.00                     

Amount Outstanding -           -           -           -           -           -           88.22                  -           -           88.22                  -            88.22                  -            -            88.22                  

Provision Thereon -           -           -           -           -           -           35.69                  -           -           35.69                  -            35.69                  -            -            35.69                  
No. of Borrowers -           -           -           -           -           -           3.00                     -           -           3.00                     -            3.00                     -            -            3.00                     
Amount Outstanding -           -           -           -           -           -           159.76                -           -           159.76                -            159.76                -            -            159.76                
Provision Thereon -           -           -           -           -           -           52.85                  -           -           52.85                  -            52.85                  -            -            52.85                  
No. of Borrowers -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       
Amount Outstanding -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       
Provision Thereon -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       

No. of Borrowers -           -           -           -           -           -           1.00                     -           -           1.00                     -            1.00                     -            -            1.00                     

Amount Outstanding -           -           -           -           -           -           88.22                  -           -           88.22                  -            88.22                  -            -            88.22                  

Provision Thereon -           -           -           -           -           -           35.69                  -           -           35.69                  -            35.69                  -            -            35.69                  

No. of Borrowers -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       
Amount Outstanding -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       
Provision Thereon -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       
No. of Borrowers -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       
Amount Outstanding -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       
Provision Thereon -           -           -           -           -           -           -                       -           -           -                       -            -                       -            -            -                       
No. of Borrowers -           -           -           -           -           -           3.00                     -           -           3.00                     -            3.00                     -            -            3.00                     
Amount Outstanding -           -           -           -           -           -           159.76                -           -           159.76                -            159.76                -            -            159.76                
Provision Thereon -           -           -           -           -           -           52.85                  -           -           52.85                  -            52.85                  -            -            52.85                  

Total
Asset Classification

Standard
Sub-

Standard Doubtful Sub-Standard Doubtful Standard Sub-Standard Doubtful Loss Total

Sr. No.
Type of Restructuring

Under CDR Mechanism / Under SME Debt 
Restructuring Others

Loss TotalLoss TotalDetails Standard

1
Restructured Accounts as on 1st 
April 2019

2
Fresh Restructuring during the year

3
Upgradations to restructured 
standard category during the 
financial year

*Till Previous year the company was providing disclosures as required under RBI Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-Systemically Important non-deposit taking company and deposit taking company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as may be 
amended from time to time.

7 Restructured Accounts as on 31st 
March of the FY (Closing Figures)*

* Excluding the Figures of standard restructured advances which do not attract higher provisioning on risk weight

4

Restructured Standard Advances 
which ceases to attract higher 
provisioning  and / or additional 
risk weight at the end of the FY 
and hence need not be shown as 
restructured standard advances at 
the beginning of the next FY.

5 Downgradations of restructured 
accounts during the FY

6 Write offs of restructured accounts 
during the FY 
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45 Disclosure required as per Circular DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 - Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards

As at March 31, 2021 (Rs. In Lakhs)

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms
Asset classifi-        

cation as per Ind AS 
109

Gross Carrying Amount 
as per Ind AS

Loss Allowances 
(Provisions) as 

required under Ind 
AS 109

Net Carrying Amount
Provisions required 
as per IRACP norms 

Difference 
between Ind AS 

109
provisions and 
IRACP norms

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7) = (4)-(6)

Performing Assets
Stage 1                         23,274.29                        228.45                         23,045.84                          93.10                      135.35 
Stage 2                            1,289.61                           57.51                            1,232.10                          88.84                       (31.33)

Subtotal                         24,563.90                        285.96                         24,277.93                        181.95                      104.02 
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3                            1,421.73                        658.12                               763.61                        217.59                      440.53 
Doubtful -  up to 1 year Stage 3                               258.71                        123.29                               135.42                          85.35                         37.94 
1 to 3 years Stage 3                                        -                                    -                                          -                                   -                                  -   
More than 3 years Stage 3                                        -                                    -                                          -                                   -                                  -   
Subtotal for doubtful                               258.71                        123.29                               135.42                          85.35                         37.94 
Loss Stage 3                                        -   -                                                                     -                                   -                                  -   
Subtotal for NPA                           1,680.44 781.41                                                     899.03                        302.94                      478.47 

Stage 1
                                 -                                          -                                  -   

Stage 2
                                 -                                          -                                  -   

Stage 3                                  -   
                                       -                                  -   

Subtotal                                        -                                    -                                          -                                   -                                  -   
Stage 1                         23,274.29                        228.45                         23,045.84                          93.10                      135.35 
Stage 2                            1,289.61                           57.51                            1,232.10                          88.84                       (31.33)
Stage 3                            1,680.44                        781.41                               899.03                        302.94                      478.47 
Total                         26,244.34                     1,067.37                         25,176.97                        484.88                      582.50 

Standard

Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc. 
which are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered   
under   current   Income Recognition, Asset Classification 
and Provisioning (IRACP) norms

Total



As at March 31, 2020  (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms
Asset classifi-        

cation as per Ind AS 
109

Gross Carrying Amount 
as per Ind AS

Loss Allowances 
(Provisions) as 

required under Ind 
AS 109

Net Carrying Amount
Provisions required 
as per IRACP norms 

Difference 
between Ind AS 

109
provisions and 
IRACP norms

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7) = (4)-(6)

Performing Assets
Stage 1                         23,957.77                        276.26                         23,681.51                          90.05                      186.21 
Stage 2                               488.75                           17.62                               471.13                            1.84                         15.78 
Stage 3                            1,592.83                        543.50                            1,049.33                            5.84                      537.66 

Subtotal                         26,039.35                        837.38                         25,201.97                          97.73                      739.65 
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3                               590.98                        299.83                               291.15                          65.98                      233.85 
Doubtful -  up to 1 year Stage 3                                        -                                    -                                          -                                   -                                  -   
1 to 3 years Stage 3                                        -                                    -                                          -                                   -                                  -   
More than 3 years Stage 3                                        -                                    -                                          -                                   -                                  -   
Subtotal for doubtful                                        -                                    -                                          -                                   -                                  -   
Loss Stage 3                                        -   -                                                                     -                                   -                                  -   
Subtotal for NPA                               590.98 299.83                                                     291.15                          65.98                      233.85 

Stage 1
                                 -                                          -                                  -   

Stage 2
                                 -                                          -                                  -   

Stage 3                                  -   
                                       -                                  -   

Subtotal                                        -                                    -                                          -                                   -                                  -   
Stage 1                         23,957.77                        276.26                         23,681.51                          90.05                      186.21 
Stage 2                               488.75                           17.62                               471.13                            1.84                         15.78 
Stage 3                            2,183.81                        843.33                            1,340.48                          71.82                      771.51 
Total                         26,630.33                     1,137.21                         25,493.12                        163.71                      973.50 

Standard

Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc. 
which are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered   
under   current   Income Recognition, Asset Classification 
and Provisioning (IRACP) norms

Total



45.1 Movement of NPAs:-
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particular 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Net NPA to net advance (%) 3.57% 5.26%
Movement of gross NPAs
     Opening Balance 2,183.82                        307.05                              
     Addition during the year 1,013.39                        2,183.82                           
     Reduction/Write off during the year 1,516.77                        307.05                              
     Closing balance 1,680.44                        2,183.82                           
Movement of provision for NPAs
     Opening Balance 843.33 107.67                              
     Addition during the year 481.95 843.34                              
     Reduction/Write off during the year 543.88 107.68                              
     Closing balance 781.40                            843.33                              
Movement of net NPAs
     Opening Balance 1,340.49                        199.38                              
     Addition during the year 531.44                            1,340.48                           
     Reduction/Write off during the year 972.89                            199.37                              
     Closing balance 899.04                            1,340.49                           

46

Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
(A) SMA/overdue categories, where the 
moratorium/deferment was extended

-                                  -                                    

(B) Out of (A) above, amount on which asset 
classification benefits is extended

-                                  -                                    

(C) Provision Made on (B)  as at 31-03-2020 -                                  -                                    
(D) Provisions adjusted during the respective accounting 
periods against slippages

-                                  -                                    

(E) Residual Provision -                                  -                                    

Disclosure required as per Circular DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 - COVID19 Regulatory Package - Asset Classification and Provisioning 
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47  Asset Liability Management - Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 
31st March, 2021 1 to 7 Days 8  to 14 days

15 to 30/31 
days

Over one 
month to 2 

months
Over 2 months 

to 3 months
Over 3 months 
upto 6 months

Over 6 months 
upto 1year

Over 1 year 
upto 3 years

Over 3 years 
upto 5 years Over 5 years Total

Liabilities
Borrowings 294.74 30.85 427.62                893.81                718.19             2,084.44             4,116.16             8,441.45                         -   17,007.26         

Asset
Loans 67.60                  157.27                           1,406.11             2,185.69             1,666.45             5,789.50             7,444.01             5,775.78                   91.02                477.28 25,060.71         
Investments- MF                   61.12 75.00                 136.12               

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at 

31st March, 2020 1 to 7 Days 8  to 14 days
15 to 30/31 

days
Over one 

month to 2 
Over 2 months 

to 3 months
Over 3 months 
upto 6 months

Over 6 months 
upto 1year

Over 1 year 
upto 3 years

Over 3 years 
upto 5 years Over 5 years Total

Liabilities         
Borrowings                105.63                110.26                341.11                439.50                992.00             2,764.00             5,943.55             6,456.00                   40.67                         -   17,192.72         

Assets
Loans -                      -                                     396.39                555.24             2,698.38             5,411.39             8,509.72             6,740.47                990.44                   -   25,302.03         
Investments- MF                   56.58 56.58                 

In computing above information, certain estimates, assumptions and adjustments have been made by the Management which have been relied upon by the auditor. 
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48
48.1

Year 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Number of Significant 
Counterparties

                        16.00                         14.00 

Amount (In Lakhs)                 17,080.07                 17,096.97 
% of Total deposits  NA  NA 
% of Total liabilities 84% 58%

48.2

48.3 Top 10 borrowings
 Year 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
 Amount (In Lakhs)                 13,350.65 15,369.08                
% of Total Borrowings 78% 89%

48.4
Year
Name of the Instrument/ 
Product

Amount (In Lakhs)
% of Total 
Liabilities

Amount (In Lakhs)
% of Total 
Liabilities

Secured Non Convertible 
Debentures

                  3,799.80 22.34% 1,493.05                  8.68%

Term loans                 13,207.46 77.66% 15,699.67                91.32%
Cash Credit Limits                                -                                  -   
Total                 17,007.26 100.00%                 17,192.72 100.00%

48.5 Stock Ratios
Particulars
Year 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Commercial papers - - - - - -

Non- Convertible Debentures 
(original maturity of less than 
one year)

- - - - - -

Other Short term liabilities* - - 51.72% 60.63% 35.46% 40.96%

48.6

As a % of total assets

Pursuant to RBI Guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies dated November 4, 2019

The Liquidity Risk Management of the Company is governed by Risk Management Committee. The Board has the overall responsibility for management of 
liquidity risk. The Board decides the strategy, policies and procedures to manage liquidity risk in accordance with the liquidity risk tolerance/limits 
approved by it. The Risk Management Committee (RMC), which is a committee of the Board, is responsible for evaluating the overall risks faced by the 
Company including liquidity risk. Company’s Board has guided Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)  to ensure adherence to the liquidity risk 
tolerance/limits and prepare liquidity risk management strategy. The role of the ALCO with respect to liquidity risk would include, inter alia, decision on 
desired maturity profile and mix of incremental assets and liabilities, responsibilities and controls for managing liquidity risk, and overseeing the liquidity 
positions at an entity level.

* Other Short term Liabilities comprises of Trade payables, Current portion of Lease obligation , borrowings and Debt securties,Short term provisions and 
short term other financials and Non financial liabilities

Top 20 large deposits

Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

 Funding ConcentraƟon based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

As a % of public funds As a % of Total liabilities

Not Applicable. The Company being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India does not 
accept public deposits.
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Disclosure as per RBI Circular on Asset Classification and Income Recognition following 
the expiry of Covid-19 regulatory package RBI/2021-22/17
DOR.STR.REC.4/21.04.048/2021-22

The company had not charged Interest on Interest to any of its borrower during the 
moratorium period hence the company has no amount to be refunded or adjusted as per 
the  Hon’ble Supreme Court of India's judgement in the matter of Small Scale Industrial 
Manufacturers Association vs UOI & Ors.
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1 Loans and advances availed by the non- banking financial company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Amount outstanding Amount overdue Amount outstanding Amount overdue
a) Debentures : 
    Secured 3,927.85                              -                                            1,561.09                            -                                 
    Unsecured(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits) -                                        -                                      -                                 

b) Deferred Credits -                                        -                                      -                                 
c) Term Loans 13,271.48                            15,818.36                          -                                 
d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing -                                        -                                      -                                 
e) Commercial Paper -                                        -                                      -                                 
f) Public Deposits -                                        -                                      -                                 
g) Other Loans -                                        -                                      -                                 
Cash Credit from Bank -                                        -                                      -                                 

2 Break-up of above (outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid):
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Amount outstanding Amount overdue Amount outstanding Amount overdue
a) In the form of Unsecured Debentures -                                      -                                 

-                                      -                                 
c) Other Public deposits -                                      -                                 

3

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Amount Outstanding 2020-21 2019-20
a) Secured 12,373.19 26,630.33
b) Unsecured 13,754.88 1.33

Particulars
2019-202020-21

Disclosure as required in terms of Paragraph 19 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2016

Particulars
2020-21 2019-20

b) In the form of Partly Secured debentures i.e.debentures where there is a shortfall in the value of
security

Break up of Loans and advances including bills receivables[other than those included in (4) below]: excluding interest accrued



4 Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assests counting towards AFC activities:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Pariculars 2020-21 2019-20
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
     (a) Financial Lease -                                        -                                        
     (b) Operating Lease -                                        -                                        

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
     (a) Assests on hire -                                        -                                        
     (b) Repossessed Assests -                                        -                                        

(iii) Other Loans counting towards AFC activities
     (a) Loans where assests have been repossessed -                                        -                                        
     (b) Loan other than (a) Above -                                        -                                        

5 Break up of Investments
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Pariculars 2020-21 2019-20
Current Investments:
1. Quoted
(i) Shares:
   (a) Equity -                                        -                                        
   (b) Preference -                                        -                                        
(ii) Debentures and Bonds -                                        -                                        
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds 61.12 56.58
(iv) Government Securities -                                        -                                        
(v) Others (please specify) -                                        -                                        
2. Unquoted
(i) Shares:
   (a) Equity -                                        -                                        
   (b) Preference -                                        -                                        
(ii) Debentures and Bonds -                                        -                                        
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds -                                        -                                        
(iv) Government Securities -                                        -                                        
(v) Unit of Alternate Investment Fund -                                        -                                        

Long Term Investments:
1. Quoted
(i) Shares:
   (a) Equity -                                        -                                        
   (b) Preference -                                        -                                        
(ii) Debentures and Bonds -                                        -                                        
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds -                                        -                                        
(iv) Government Securities -                                        -                                        
(v) Others -                                        -                                        



2. Unquoted
(i) Shares:
   (a) Equity 75.00                                    -                                        
   (b) Preference 70.19                                    70.19
(ii) Debentures and Bonds -                                        -                                        
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds -                                        -                                        
(iv) Government Securities -                                        -                                        
(v) Unit of Alternate Investment Fund -                                        -                                        

6 Borrowers group wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties
    a) Subsidiaries -                                       -                                            -                                      -                                 
    b) Companies in the same group -                                       -                                            -                                      -                                 
    c) Other Related parties -                                       1,433.91                                  -                                      1,433.91                       
2. Other than related parties 12,373.19                           13,754.88                           26,128.07                           25,031.38                                1.33                                    25,032.71                     
Total 12,373.19                           13,754.88                           26,128.07                           26,465.29                                1.33                                    26,466.62                    

7 Investor group wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):
(Rs. In Lakhs)

 Market Value/Break up 
or FAIR Value or NAV 

 Book Value(Net of 
Provisions) 

Market Value/Break up 
or FAIR Value or NAV

Book Value(Net of 
Provisions)

1. Related parties
    a) Subsidiaries -                                        -                                            -                                      -                                 
    b) Companies in the same group -                                        -                                            -                                      -                                 
    c) Other Related parties -                                        -                                            -                                      -                                 
2. Other than related parties 136.12                                  136.12                                     56.58                                  56.58                            
Total 136.12                                 136.12                                     56.58                                  56.58                            

8 Other Information
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Pariculars 2020-21 2019-20
(i) Gross Non-Performing Assests
     a) Related Parties -                                        -                                        
     b) Other than related parties 1,680.44 590.98
(ii) Net Non performing Assests
     a) Related Parties -                                        -                                        
     b) Other than related parties 899.03 291.15
(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of Debt

2020-21

Category
Amount net of Provisions (Refer Note 47.4) Amount net of Provisions (Refer Note 47.4)

2019-20

Category



Notes:
50.1
50.2
50.3
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd sd
Brij Mohan Gaurav Gupta
Chairman Managing Director
(DIN 00667210) (DIN 08663203)

sd sd
Pranav Desai Lavina Parikh
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Ahmedabad

The code on Wages, 2019 and Code on Social Security, 2020 (“the Code”) relating to employee compensation and post-employment benefits that received Presidential assent have not been notified. 
Further, the related rules for quantifying the financial impact have not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Codes when the rules are notified and will record any related impact in the 
period the Codes becomes effective.

Date:  25th May 2021

As defined in point xix of paragraph 3 of chapter 2 of these Directions.
Provisioning norms shall be appliable as prescribed in these Directions.
All Accounting standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAI are applicable including for valuation of investments and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt.However market value in
respect of quoted investments and break up/fair value/NAV in respect of unquoted investment shall be disclosed irrespective of whether they are classified as long term or current in (5) above

 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to confirm to current year’s presentation.


